
03/02/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 1 of 4
12:31:20                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  2/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  4126            512 Caleb Nolte                            276.50
       travel1001 02/22/23 Per Diem- Training Minneap      276.50                               100       4151    341          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        276.50

  4128             42 CASS COUNTY ELECTRIC                    65.00
       1182598 02/10/23 106-173-2162 Babbling brook         62.90                               100       4151    351          1130
       1182598 02/10/23 Opration Round UP                    0.84                               502       4151    351          1130
       1182598 02/10/23 Franchise Fees                       1.26                               502       4151    353          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:         65.00

  4134             49 CASS RURAL WATER USERS                  86.01
 11/29 - 12/28
       12650 02/25/23 8501 Memory Lane                      27.00                               501       4152    452          1130
       13948 02/25/23 Visto Industrial Pit                  59.01                               501       4152    452          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:         86.01

  4141             55 CINTAS                                 124.11
       4147845117 02/28/23 Floor Mats - City Hall          124.11                               100       4151    381          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        124.11

  4135             56 CITY OF FARGO                           70.00
       435234 02/22/23 Wastewater Lab Testing               70.00                               502       4152    431          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:         70.00

  4137             62 CORE & MAIN                         44,932.00
       S362421 02/14/23 Water Meters - Ally 3/4 (100)   44,932.00*                              501       4153    641          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:     44,932.00

  4144            527 Dakota Lands, LLC DBA J&L           53,000.00
 Street Bond refunds - Program Disc. refund remaining Bonds Detail in Scan
       refund 03/01/23 Stree Bond Refunds               53,000.00                               100       2150                 1130
 Street Bond Refund
                                     Total for Vendor:     53,000.00



03/02/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 2 of 4
12:31:20                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  2/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  4140            457 DRN READITECH                       17,475.08
       2737600 02/24/23 Managed Services -11/1 - 11/3   11,847.10                               100       4151    317          1130
       2737600 02/24/23 HP Probook 850 w/ dock - Bren    5,214.00                               100       4153    643          1130
       2737600 02/24/23 Memory upgrade-Project Mgr's       199.00                               100       4153    643          1130
       2737600 02/24/23 Telephone & Internet               214.98                               100       4151    356          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:     17,475.08

  4139             88 FASTENAL                               121.58
       274727 02/22/23 Dolly for DEF                        78.65                     Doug      501       4152    421          1130
       274912 02/27/23 1/2-13x1.75pb                        42.93                               501       4152    421          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        121.58

  4148            554 Forum Communications Printing        2,742.78
       248955 02/28/23 Horace Happenings Printing        2,742.78                               100       4151    360          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      2,742.78

  4124            375 HORACE FIRE DISTRICT                 3,022.23
       10%Feb23 02/22/23 Rev. Share/State Aid            3,022.23                               100       4154    770          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      3,022.23

  4125            105 HORACE PARK DISTRICT                 3,022.23
       10%Feb23 02/22/23 Rev. Share/State Aid            3,022.23                               100       4154    770          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      3,022.23

  4138            116 INTERSTATE ENGINEERING             126,149.78
       50013 02/20/23 Shared Use Path CR 17             35,000.00*                              220       4151    315          1130
       50154 02/27/23 2022-01 Vistos Pvmnt               1,087.87*                              474       4319    315          1130
       50155 02/27/23 2022-7 Southdale 5th                 153.56*                              480       4319    315          1130
       50156 02/27/23 2022-2 Lost River 7th              2,536.00*                              475       4319    315          1130
       50159 02/27/23 2021-5 Arrowwood 3rd               6,216.90*                              471       4319    315          1130
       50160 02/27/23 2022-11 Cub Creek second          38,205.90*                              484       4319    315          1130
       50161 02/27/23 Southdale farms 6th                  654.50*                              100       4319    315          1130
       50162 02/27/23 Vistos 4th                           219.68*                              456       4319    315          1130
       50163 02/27/23 Prelim for Sparks Trust Land         219.68*                              100       4319    315          1130
       50164 02/27/23 Prelim for 64th roundabout on        445.60*                              100       4319    315          1130
       50165 02/27/23 2022-12 Rivers edge 2nd            2,902.82*                              485       4319    315          1130



03/02/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 3 of 4
12:31:20                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  2/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
       50166 02/27/23 Prelim Flush to Fargo at 45th      1,268.00*                              100       4319    315          1130
       50167 02/27/23 2017-6 Chestnut drive              1,407.50*                              447       4319    315          1130
       50169 02/27/23 2020-6 Horace Main Water          13,078.20*                              465       4319    315          1130
       50170 02/27/23 2022-6 Southdale 4th              10,098.90*                              479       4319    315          1130
       50168 02/27/23 2018-02 Samitary Sewer Horsesh    12,654.67*                              100       4319    315          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:    126,149.78

  4136            118 JDP ELECTRIC                         1,088.78
       s33634 02/21/23 Repair pole lights                1,088.78                               201       4151    381          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      1,088.78

  4130            507 Jesse Knutson                          355.50
       travel1001 02/22/23 Region 3 ICC Training           355.50                               100       4151    341          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        355.50

  4143            126 JORDAHL CUSTOM HOMES                29,000.00
 Street Bond refunds - Program Disc. refund remaining Bonds Detail in Scan
       REFUND 03/01/23 Street Bond Refunds              29,000.00                               100       2150                 1130
                                     Total for Vendor:     29,000.00

  4129            354 MARCO TECHNOLOGIES, LLC                422.24
       494531627 02/14/23 Copier lease and overage         422.24                               100       4151    332          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        422.24

  4145            281 PREMIUM WATERS, INC.                    10.00
       351531717 02/28/23 Drinking Water                    10.00                               100       4152    490          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:         10.00

  4147            461 REVIZE LLC                           3,000.00
 annual subscription, hosting, and support
       15407 03/01/23 Website Subscription, hosting      3,000.00                               100       4151    317          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      3,000.00
                                    *** Claim from another period (12/22) ****
  4127            306 SUMMERVILLE ELECTRIC, INC.           3,878.07
       9032 12/15/22 Replace lightPole-Liberty Ln        3,878.07                               201       4151    381          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      3,878.07



03/02/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 4 of 4
12:31:20                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  2/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  4142            491 TENTS & EVENTS RENTALL INC           3,754.98
 150th Anniversary event
 Pd 1/2 as deposit - Council Mtg 3/6/23

       334837 01/19/23 150th Anniv Event 1/2 as depos    3,754.98                               100       4152    461          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      3,754.98

  4146            242 TRUNORTH DYNAMICS                      149.00
       110408 03/01/23 NjevityTOGO Remote Desktop          149.00                               100       4151    310          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        149.00
                                       # of Claims    22      Total:  292,745.87      # of Vendors    22



As of: 2/27/2023

Prepared for: 

2/27/2023 1/27/2023 Variance

NonInterest Bearing Balances -                           -                            -                       
FDIC Insurance 250,000.00             250,000.00              
Uninsured NonInterest Bearing* -                           -                            -                       

Interest Bearing Balances 4,483,878.30         3,594,486.61           889,391.69         
FDIC Insurance 250,000.00             250,000.00              
Uninsured Interest Bearing* 4,233,878.30         3,344,486.61           889,391.69         

*Total Uninsured Deposits 4,233,878.30         3,344,486.61           889,391.69         
X 110% 4,657,266.13         3,678,935.27           978,330.86         

Pledged Securities (Market Value) 5,244,257.35         3,881,587.18           1,362,670.17      
Pledge Changes in Process

Pledge Excess (Shortage) 586,991.22             202,651.91              384,339.31         

Pledge Report

City of Horace

Thank you for banking with Starion Bank!  If you have any questions on this pledge 
report, please email financialoperations@starionbank.com. 





 

 
February 28, 2023 
 
Brenton Holper, City Administrator  
City Of Horace  
215 Park Drive E 
PO Box 99  
Horace, ND 58047-0099 
 
 

RE: Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street Improvement District No. 
2022-11 (Cub Creek Second Addition)  
Horace, ND  
ER22-00-137 

 
Dear Mr. Holper : 
 
Attached please find Progressive Estimate No. 2 in the amount of $1,088,570.04 for work performed by 
KPH, INC. regarding the above referenced project.  

This office has prepared the attached estimate and recommends that the City Council approve the same. 
After the progressive estimate has been approved, it should be signed by the Mayor and returned to our 
Horace office for distribution.  

Should you have any questions or require any additional information regarding this matter, do not hesitate 
to contact me at (701) 532-0438. 

 

Regards, 
 
INTERSTATE ENGINEERING, INC.  
 
 
 
James A. Dahlman, PE 
JAD/ajh 
 
Attachment  
 
 

KPH Inc. (via email. eric@kphinc.net, office@kphinc.net)  
City of Horace Finance (via email. finance@cityofhorace.com, bpacht@cityofhorace.com) 
 

  



President

02-28-2023

President

2/28/2023























































































































































































Horace City Council Meeting Minutes  February 21, 2023 

 

 

 
Horace City Council Meeting Minutes  
The Horace City Council met on February 21, 2023 @ 6:00 pm at the Horace Fire Hall Event Center. 
Those present were Mayor Kory Peterson, Councilmembers Sarah Veit, Naomi Burkland, and Stephanie 
Landstrom. Councilmember Trudeau was absent. Others present included: Brenton Holper, City 
Administrator; Matt Voltz, Finance Director; Sally Showalter, Communications Specialist; Jim Dahlman, 
City Engineer; and Lukas Croaker, City Attorney.  
 
Mayor Peterson called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm.  
The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 
Agenda Item #3: Approve Regular Agenda  
Motion: Approve the Regular Agenda Removing Agenda Item #10 (Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street 
Improvement District No. 2022-12 – River’s Edge Second Addition). 
1st Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Veit 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Agenda Item #4: Approve Consent Agenda  

a. Vendor Invoices 
b. Balance Sheet & Income Statement 
c. FY 2022 Annual Fiscal Statements (unaudited) 
d. Checks Written in January 2023 

Motion: Approve the Consent Agenda. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Veit  
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Agenda Item #5: Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes from February 6, 2023.  
Motion: Approve the February 6, City Council Meeting Minutes.  
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Agenda Item #6: Public Comment  
Resident Russ Sahr voiced concern about the expired Tax Abatement Resolution. He explained that he 
used to be against the tax abatement until the numbers were explained to him during a past City 
Council meeting. He summarized that a new homeowner would continue to pay taxes and specials 
during the tax abatement period. Mr. Sahr added that the decision of letting the Tax Abatement 
Resolution expire will put developments at risk. If new developments fail, every property owner in 
Horace will be on the hook for the bonds that were issued. He said that Horace currently has a very 
good bond rating, and he hopes that the rating will not drop. Mr. Sahr stated that waiting five months 
until the Tax Abatement Resolution is discussed again is too long. In his opinion, the Tax Abatement 
Resolution should be reinstated as soon as possible, before too much damage is done. He concluded 
that the City’s Council’s decision to slow growth could cost Horace millions of dollars.  
 
 



Horace City Council Meeting Minutes  February 21, 2023 

 

 

 
Resident James Post, who lives on 2nd Ave. stated that he is concerned about the water quality in town. 
He explained that he has lived in many places in the Unites States, but Horace has some of the worst 
water he has ever seen. He asked that the City Council work on water improvements so that his water 
heater does not continue to clog up. Mayor Peterson explained that some parts of Horace are receiving 
Cass Rural Water service and that the City is currently working on connecting the rest of the residents 
to Cass Rural Water. He added that the water from Cass Rural will still be hard, but that it will not be 
discolored like Horace’s water.   
 
Agenda Item # 7: Sheriff’s Update | Craig Keller & Jake Murray, Cass County Sheriff’s Department 
No update.  
 
Agenda Item #8: Visto Industrial Addition | Jace Hellman, Community Development Director  
Mr. Croaker presented the Visto Industrial Addition Street Name Change Resolution. Mr. Croaker 
explained that the north-south road parallel to County Road 17 and the east-west road immediately 
adjacent to and parallel with County Road 14 were plated as frontage roads. Visto Industrial 2nd 
Addi�on, which was a replat of Visto Industrial Addi�on, s�ll reflected Industrial Drive running east-
west, and the two frontage roads paralleling County Roads 17 and 14. However, when the addressing 
for the proper�es was completed in 2017, Industrial Drive addresses were assigned to the proper�es 
fron�ng the frontage roads, which extended the Industrial Drive street name down the north-south 
frontage road and approximately 650 feet down the east-west frontage road paralleling County Road 
14. 
 
Mr. Croaker added that the addressing for those proper�es should have been assigned off County Road 
17 and County Road 14, as reflected in the addressing of Visto Industrial 3rd Addi�on; however, at that 
�me when Visto Industrial 2nd Addi�on was plated and addressed, there was no access to County 
Road 14, and according to the County, that is why Industrial Drive was extended. He concluded that 
staff received a request to change the name of the sec�on of Industrial Drive that runs parallel to 
County Road 17 to Erwin Drive and that only one property owner (Mr. Cooper Anderson of Prairie 
Scales) would be affected by the suggested name change, but that the property owner was not in favor 
of the proposed name change.   
 
Mr. Anderson was in the audience and explained to the City Council that he would prefer that instead 
of changing the street name to Erwin Dr., the road be divided into Industrial North and South. This way, 
he would not have to change his business address or the marke�ng that has been done, which included 
the Industrial Dr. address. The City Council discussed several op�ons for how to rename the road and 
which of the op�ons would make the most sense, also for the incoming property owners.  
 
Mayor Peterson suggested tabling the street name change un�l City staff can work with the property 
owner and the incoming business owners to find a solu�on that will work for everyone involved. Mayor 
Peterson said that the item would be brought back to the City Council during the next mee�ng. The City 
Council agreed, and the item was tabled.  
 
Agenda Item #9: Storm and Street Improvement District No. 2022-3 (Wall Avenue - Sheyenne 
River to Cass County Highway 17) | Jim Dahlman, City Engineer 
Mr. Dahlman presented the plans and specifications for Storm and Street Improvement District  
 



Horace City Council Meeting Minutes  February 21, 2023 

 

 

 
No. 2022-3 (Wall Avenue – Sheyenne River to Cass County Highway 17). He summarized the timeline 
for the project’s next steps and explained that the bid advertising would be posted in the local paper 
for the next three weeks. The bid opening will take place on March 23, 2023. The project’s completion 
date is set for September 20, 2023.   
Motion: Approve the Plans and Specifications for Storm and Street Improvement District No. 2022-3 
(Wall Avenue - Sheyenne River to Cass County Highway 17) Contingent on the Public Works 
Department’s Review. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Motion: Authorize the Auditor to Advertise for Bids for Storm and Street Improvement District No. 
2022-3 (Wall Avenue - Sheyenne River to Cass County Highway 17). 
1st Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Veit 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Agenda Item #10: Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street Improvement District No. 2022-12 (River’s 
Edge Second Addition) | Jim Dahlman, City Engineer 
The item was removed from the agenda.  
 
Agenda Item #11: Engineering/Public Works Report | Jim Dahlman, City Engineer 
No update. 
 
Agenda Item #12: City Administrator Report | Brenton Holper, City Administrator 
Mr. Holper summarized two house bills, HB 1328 and HB 1330, that were presented during the 2023 
legislative sessions. Both bills would have impacted Horace’s special assessment procedures. Mr. Holper 
concluded that both bills failed on Thursday, February 16, 2023.  
 
Agenda Item #13: Portfolio Reports 

1. Mayor Peterson explained that he traveled to Bismarck to attend events that were hosted by 
the FMWF Chamber of Commerce. The attendees had a chance to meet with legislators and 
attend a breakfast with the Governor. Mayor Peterson got a chance to discuss Horace with the 
Governor, which included funding for the new sewer line that the City is working on as well as 
the shortage in childcare that effects residents.  

2. Councilmember Veit said that she attended several City project bid openings and follow-up 
meetings. She added that it will be a very busy spring when it comes to upcoming construction 
projects.  

3. Council Burkland has been working through the new Land Use Ordinance and has requested 
that the City Council schedule a special meeting with the Planning Commission to work on the 
ordinance together.  

4. Councilmember Landstrom continues to work with staff on upcoming events, including the 
Horace 150th sesquicentennial. 

 
 
 



Horace City Council Meeting Minutes  February 21, 2023 

 

 

 
Agenda Item #14: Executive session held pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 44-04-19.1(9) to discuss negotiating 
strategy or provide negotiating instructions to its attorney or other negotiator regarding contracts for 
the purchase of real property related to the Wall Ave Project. 
 
Motion: Enter into executive session pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 44-04-19.1(9) to discuss negotiating 
strategy or provide negotiating instructions to its attorney or other negotiator regarding contracts for 
the purchase of real property related to the Wall Ave Project at 6:50 pm.  
1st Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Veit 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried.  
 
Motion: Return to Regular Session at 7:33pm.  
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried.  
 
Motion: Approve the Tree Replacement Policy as Presented and Set March 15, 2023, as the New 
Deadline for Property Owners to Respond.  
1st Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Motion: Approve the Revised Right of Way Extent. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Veit 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Agenda Item #15: Adjourn  
Motion: Adjourn at 7:35 pm. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 

The next City Council Meeting is scheduled for Monday, March 6, 2023, at 6:00 pm 
 
 
 
 









FEBRUARY MAP OF INCIDENTS HORACE 



Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 

City of Horace, North Dakota 

DRAFT



 

 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Table of Contents 

December 31, 2021 
 
 

Elected and Appointed Officials (Unaudited) ....................................................................................................... 1 

Independent Auditor’s Report ............................................................................................................................. 2 

Basic Financial Statements 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
Statement of Net Position ........................................................................................................................ 6 
Statement of Activities ............................................................................................................................. 7 

Fund Financial Statements 
Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet .......................................................................................................................................... 8 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position ...................................................... 9 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.....................................................10 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 

Balance to the Statement of Activities .................................................................................................11 
General Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual ........................12 
Highway Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual ........................13 
Sales Tax Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual ........................14 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Net Position .......................................................................................................................15 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position ..............................................................16 
Statement of Cash Flows .........................................................................................................................17 

Notes to Financial Statements ........................................................................................................................18 

Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards...................................................................................................37 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ....................................................................................38 

Additional Reports 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ...................................................................................39 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program and Report on 
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance ........................................................41 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ....................................................................................................44 
 

DRAFT



 

1 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Elected and Appointed Officials (Unaudited) 

December 31, 2021 
 
 

Term
Elected Position Expires

Kory Peterson Mayor 6/30/2024

Naomi Burkland City Commissioner 6/30/2024

Chelsey Johnson City Commissioner 6/30/2022

Jeffrey Trudeau City Commissioner 6/30/2024

Sarah Veit City Commissioner 6/30/2022

Administration

Brent Holper City Administrator

Liz Heisey Finance Director (through 6/30/2022)

Matt Voltz Finance Director (current)
 

 

DRAFT



 

2 

 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Horace, North Dakota 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
and each major fund of the City of Horace, North Dakota (the “City”) as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
and each major fund of the City, as of December 31, 2021, and the respective changes in financial 
position, the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund, highway fund, and sales tax fund, 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City, 
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Correction of Error 
 
As discussed in Note 11 to the financial statements, certain errors resulting in an overstatement of 
amounts previously reported as Capital Project Fund expenditures and Governmental Activities 
construction in progress and an understatement of Water Fund and Business-Type Activities 
construction in progress as of December 31, 2020, were discovered by management of the City during 
the current year. Accordingly, a restatement has been made to the Capital Projects Fund fund balance 
and Governmental Activities, the Water Fund, and Business-Type Activities construction in progress as of 
January 1, 2021, to correct the error. Our opinions are not modified with respect to that matter. 
 
 

DRAFT



 

3 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City‘s ability to continue 
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently 
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City‘s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern 
for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
  

DRAFT



 

4 

Required Supplementary Information 
 
Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. Our opinions on the basic financial statements are not affected by this missing 
information. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  
 
Other Information 
 
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other 
information comprises the elected and appointed officials listing, but does not include the basic 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do 
not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and 
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other 
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 
  

DRAFT



 

5 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
"Report Date"  on our consideration of City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
City of Example’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 
 
 
Fargo, North Dakota 
REPORT DATE 
 

DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 6 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Statement of Net Position 

December 31, 2021 
 
 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18,561,886$     43,009$             18,604,895$     
Receivables

Accounts 8,521                 131,605             140,126             
Property taxes 12,826               -                          12,826               
Special assessments 58,320,800       -                          58,320,800       

Due from other governmental units 316,958             1,234,108         1,551,066         
Interfund balances 1,398,995         (1,398,995)        -                          
Capital assets

Land 1,882,889         -                          1,882,889         
Construction in progress 9,702,525         2,492,356         12,194,881       
Infrastructure 47,776,375       19,825,752       67,602,127       
Buildings and improvements 279,086             -                          279,086             
Machinery and equipment 798,785             18,660               817,445             
Vehicles 283,170             -                          283,170             

Less accumulated depreciation (3,061,042)        (1,508,121)        (4,569,163)        

Total assets 136,281,774     20,838,374       157,120,148     

Liabilities
Accounts payable 716,530             83,372               799,902             
Retainage payable 836,374             213,768             1,050,142         
Accrued interest payable 378,887             2,296                 381,183             
Other liabilities 46,173               7,443                 53,616               
Unearned revenue 231,116 -                          231,116             
Long-term liabilities

Due within one year 2,113,161         161,457             2,274,618         
Due in more than one year 77,871,146 728,415             78,599,561       

Total liabilities 82,193,387       1,196,751         83,390,138       

Net position
Net investment in capital assets (10,834,601)      19,731,464       8,896,863         
Restricted 72,853,239       -                          72,853,239       
Unrestricted (7,930,251)        (89,841)              (8,020,092)        

Total net position 54,088,387$     19,641,623$     73,730,010$      
 

DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 7 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Statement of Activities 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 
 
 

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Primary Government
Governmental activities

General government 5,460,054$       1,887,117$       -$                        -$                        (3,572,937)$      -$                        (3,572,937)$      
Public safety 173,775             4,602                 -                          -                          (169,173)           -                          (169,173)           
Public works 1,100,825         52,393               -                          -                          (1,048,432)        -                          (1,048,432)        
Interest on long-term debt 1,896,447 -                          -                          -                          (1,896,447)        -                          (1,896,447)        

Total governmental activities 8,631,101         1,944,112         -                          -                          (6,686,989)        -                          (6,686,989)        

Business-type activities
Water 335,325             371,557             -                          1,234,108         -                          1,270,340         1,270,340         
Sewer 352,573             524,539             -                          -                          -                          171,966             171,966             
Garbage 294,902             327,976             -                          -                          -                          33,074               33,074               

Total business-type activities 982,800             1,224,072         -                          1,234,108         -                          1,475,380         1,475,380         

Total Government 9,613,901$       3,168,184$       -$                        1,234,108$       (6,686,989)        1,475,380         (5,211,609)        

General revenues
Property taxes 1,027,794         -                          1,027,794         
Special assessments 26,077,999       -                          26,077,999       
Sales tax 1,507,865         -                          1,507,865         
Franchise fees 34,033               -                          34,033               
State aid 436,423             -                          436,423             
Investment earnings 96,338               -                          96,338               
Miscellaneous 169,705             -                          169,705             

Transfers and capital contributions (9,450,042)        9,450,042         -                          

Total general revenue and transfers 19,900,115       9,450,042         29,350,157       

Change in net position 13,213,126       10,925,422       24,138,548       

Net position - beginning 40,875,261 8,716,201         49,591,462       

Net position - ending 54,088,387$     19,641,623$     73,730,010$     
 

DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 8 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet 
December 31, 2021 

 
 

Total
Governmental

General Highway Sales Tax Debt Service Capital Projects Funds
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 466,177$           283,356$           1,898,324$       3,614,858$       12,299,171$     18,561,886$     
Due from other funds 1,398,995         -                          -                          -                          -                          1,398,995         
Receivables

Accounts 8,521                 -                          -                          -                          -                          8,521                 
Property taxes 12,826               -                          -                          -                          -                          12,826               
Special assessments -                          -                          -                          58,320,800       -                          58,320,800       

Due from other governmental units 46,553               27,843               242,562             -                          -                          316,958             

Total assets 1,933,072$       311,199$           2,140,886$       61,935,658$     12,299,171$     78,619,986$     

Liabilities
Accounts payable 361,006$           22,653$             13,771$             9,410$               309,690$           716,530$           
Retainage payable -                          -                          5,000                 -                          831,374             836,374             
Other liabilities 40,401               5,772                 -                          -                          -                          46,173               
Unearned revenue -                          -                          -                          -                          231,116             231,116             

Total liabilities 401,407             28,425               18,771               9,410                 1,372,180         1,830,193         
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable revenue-property taxes 12,826               -                          -                          -                          -                          12,826               
Unavailable revenue-special assessments -                          -                          -                          56,116,257       -                          56,116,257       

Total deferred inflows of resources 12,826               -                          -                          56,116,257       -                          56,129,083       
Fund Balance

Restricted for
Highway maintenance -                          282,774             -                          -                          -                          282,774             
Sales tax -                          -                          2,122,115         -                          -                          2,122,115         
Debt service -                          -                          -                          5,809,991         -                          5,809,991         
Capital projects -                          -                          -                          10,926,991       10,926,991       

Unassigned 1,518,839         -                          -                          -                          -                          1,518,839         
Total fund balance 1,518,839         282,774             2,122,115         5,809,991         10,926,991       20,660,710       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balance 1,933,072$       311,199$           2,140,886$       61,935,658$     12,299,171$     78,619,986$     

 

DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 9 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Governmental Funds 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 
December 31, 2021 

 
 
Total Fund Balances – Governmental Funds 20,660,710$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in
the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 57,661,788       

Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, 
therefore, are either not recognized as a receivable or are deferred in the funds. 56,129,083       

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. In the current period these amounts are:

Refunding improvement bonds (57,085,649)      
Temporary improvement bonds (19,155,000)      
State revolving loans (2,358,800)        
Bon premiums (1,156,366)        
Capital lease payable (203,371)           
Compensated absences (25,121)              
Accrued interest payable (378,887)           

Total Net Position – Governmental Activities 54,088,387$     
 

 

DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 10 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

Total
Governmental

General Highway Sales Tax Debt Service Capital Projects Funds
Revenues

General property taxes 1,042,801$       -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        1,042,801$       
Special assessments -                          -                          -                          6,154,245         -                          6,154,245         
Licenses and permits 680,525             -                          -                          -                          -                          680,525             
Intergovernmental 274,996             146,945             -                          -                          -                          421,941             
Charges for services 57,244               -                          -                          -                          -                          57,244               
Loan repayment 38,951               -                          -                          -                          -                          38,951               
Fines and forfeitures 4,602                 -                          -                          -                          -                          4,602                 
Sales tax -                          -                          1,507,865         -                          -                          1,507,865         
Investment earnings 60,891               -                          -                          -                          35,447               96,338               
Miscellaneous 1,404,874         -                          -                          -                          -                          1,404,874         

Total revenues 3,564,884         146,945             1,507,865         6,154,245         35,447               11,409,386       
Expenditures

Current
General government 1,673,941         -                          -                          -                          -                          1,673,941         
Public safety 173,775             -                          -                          -                          -                          173,775             
Public works 70,846               273,786             -                          -                          -                          344,632             
General government - other 83,441               -                          -                          21,523               546,434 651,398             

Capital outlay 19,052               44,968               435,092             -                          19,902,926       20,402,038       
Debt service

Principal 21,500               -                          -                          1,112,756         -                          1,134,256         
Interest and fees 9,091                 -                          -                          1,706,871         -                          1,715,962         

Total expenditures 2,051,646         318,754             435,092             2,841,150         20,449,360       26,096,002       
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures 1,513,238         (171,809)           1,072,773         3,313,095         (20,413,913)      (14,686,616)      
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Bond proceeds -                          -                          -                          239,273             43,510,420       43,749,693       
Payment to bond refunding agent -                          -                          -                          -                          (25,715,000)      (25,715,000)      
Premium on bonds -                          -                          -                          -                          1,176,014         1,176,014         
Transfers in 3,016,592         -                          400,000             -                          3,640,327         7,056,919         
Transfers out (4,168,592)        -                          (400,000)           (413,327)           (2,000,000)        (6,981,919)        

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,152,000)        -                          -                          (174,054)           20,611,761       19,285,707       
Net Change in Fund Balance 361,238             (171,809)           1,072,773         3,139,041         197,848             4,599,091         
Fund Balance, Beginning, as restated (Note 11) 1,157,601         454,583             1,049,342         2,670,950         10,729,143       16,061,619       
Fund Balance, Ending 1,518,839$       282,774$           2,122,115$       5,809,991$       10,926,991$     20,660,710$      

DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 11 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Governmental Funds 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 
 
 
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 4,599,091$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of capital assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. In the current period these amounts are: 

Capital outlay 17,200,993       
Depreciation expense (719,969)           

The contribution of capital assets to business-type activities from governmental 
activities is not recorded in the governmental funds. However, in the
statement of activities, that amount is included within transfers (9,525,042)        

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are deferred and not reported as revenues in the funds 19,907,183       

In the statement of activities compensated absences are 
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the 
governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items
are measured by the amount of financial resources used (2,524)                

Accrued interest payable is reported in the government wide statement
of net position but is not recorded in the governmental funds (189,803)           

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term 
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. In
the current period these amounts are:

Bonds issued (43,749,693)      
Bond premiums issued, net (1,156,366)        
Capital lease retirement 21,500               
Bond principal retirement 26,827,756       

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 13,213,126$     
 

 

DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 12 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
 General Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

Actual Variance With
Original Budget Final Budget Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
General property taxes 1,085,500$       1,085,500$       1,042,801$       (42,699)$           
Licenses and permits 395,750             680,711             680,525             (186)                   
Intergovernmental 186,000             277,500             274,996             (2,504)                
Charges for services 42,000               49,200               57,244               8,044                 
Loan repayments 16,600               16,600               38,951               22,351               
Fines and forfeitures 2,500                 3,700                 4,602                 902                     
Investment earnings 24,000               53,000               60,891               7,891                 
Miscellaneous 87,650               1,394,925         1,404,874         9,949                 

Total revenues 1,840,000         3,561,136         3,564,884         3,748                 

Expenditures
Current  

General government 1,496,164         1,546,106         1,673,941         (127,835)           
Public safety 175,000             174,600             173,775             825                     
Public works -                          -                          70,846               (70,846)              
General government - other 42,000               49,200               83,441               (34,241)              

Capital outlay 9,000                 17,300               19,052               (1,752)                
Debt service

Principal -                          -                          21,500               (21,500)              
Interest and fees -                          -                          9,091                 (9,091)                

Total expenditures 1,722,164         1,787,206         2,051,646         (264,440)           

Excess of Revenues
over Expenditures 117,836             1,773,930         1,513,238         (260,692)           

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in -                          2,400,200         3,016,592         616,392             
Transfers out (117,836)           (4,168,700)        (4,168,592)        108                     

Total other financing sources (uses) (117,836)           (1,768,500)        (1,152,000)        616,500             

Net Change in Fund Balance -$                        5,430$               361,238             355,808$           

Fund Balance, Beginning 1,157,601         

Fund Balance, Ending 1,518,839$       
 

 

DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 13 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Highway Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

Actual Variance With
Original Budget Final Budget Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
Intergovernmental 136,000$           141,000$           146,945$           5,945$               

Expenditures
Current  

Public works 222,450             301,100             273,786             27,314               
Capital outlay 31,386               31,586               44,968               (13,382)              

Total expenditures 253,836             332,686             318,754             13,932               

Deficiency of Revenues
under Expenditures (117,836)           (191,686)           (171,809)           (7,987)                

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (117,836)           -                          -                          -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance (235,672)$         (191,686)$         (171,809)           (7,987)$              

Fund Balance, Beginning 454,583

Fund Balance, Ending 282,774$           
 

 

DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 14 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Sales Tax Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget to Actual 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

Actual Variance With
Original Budget Final Budget Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
Sales Tax 600,000$           1,299,300$       1,507,865$       208,565$           

Expenditures
Capital outlay 250,000             501,300             435,092             66,208               

Excess of Revenues
over Expenditures 350,000             798,000             1,072,773         274,773             

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in -                          400,000             400,000             -                          
Transfers out -                          (400,000)           (400,000)           -                          

Total other financing sources (uses) -                          -                          -                          -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance 350,000$           798,000$           1,072,773         274,773$           

Fund Balance, Beginning 1,049,342         

Fund Balance, Ending 2,122,115$       

DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 15 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Net Position 
December 31, 2021 

 
 

Water Sewer Garbage Total

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents -$                        -$                        43,009$             43,009$             
Accounts receivable 42,396               40,099               49,110               131,605             
Due from other governmental units 1,234,108 -                          -                          1,234,108         

 Total current assets 1,276,504         40,099               92,119               1,408,722         

Capital assets
Construction in progress 2,492,356         -                          -                          2,492,356         
Machinery and equipment 18,660               -                          -                          18,660               
Infrastructure 6,040,813         13,784,939       -                          19,825,752       
Less accumulated depreciation (530,048)           (978,073)           -                          (1,508,121)        

Net capital assets 8,021,781         12,806,866       -                          20,828,647       

Total assets 9,298,285         12,846,965       92,119               22,237,369       

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 78,720               4,602                 50                       83,372               
Accrued interest payable 2,296                 -                          -                          2,296                 
Retainage payable 213,768             -                          -                          213,768             
Due to other funds 863,839             535,156             -                          1,398,995         
Other liabilities 4,467                 2,976                 -                          7,443                 
Current maturities of long-term debt 158,874             2,583                 -                          161,457             

Total current liabilities 1,321,964         545,317             50                       1,867,331         

Long-term debt (net of current portion)
Bonds payable 728,415 -                          -                          728,415             

Total liabilities 2,050,379         545,317             50                       2,595,746         

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 6,924,598         12,806,866       -                          19,731,464       
Unrestricted 323,308             (505,218)           92,069               (89,841)              

Total net position 7,247,906$       12,301,648$     92,069$             19,641,623$     
 

 
 
 

DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 16 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

Water Sewer Garbage Total

Operating Revenues
Utility sales and service charges 371,557$           524,539$           327,976$           1,224,072$       

Operating Expenses
Salaries 105,888             70,569               -                          176,457             
Utilities 11,841               17,823               -                          29,664               
Repairs and maintenance 45,355               21,109               -                          66,464               
Contracted services 15,893               47,903               294,745             358,541             
Miscellaneous 53,718               35,859               157                     89,734               
Depreciation 95,159               159,310             -                          254,469             

Total operating expenses 327,854             352,573             294,902             975,329             

Operating Income 43,703               171,966             33,074               248,743             

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Grant revenue 1,234,108 -                          -                          1,234,108         
Interest on long-term debt (7,471)                -                          -                          (7,471)                

     Total nonoperating revenues 1,226,637         -                          -                          1,226,637         

Income before Transfers and Capital Contributions 1,270,340         171,966             33,074               1,475,380         

Transfers in -                          40,000               -                          40,000               
Transfers out (65,000)              (50,000)              -                          (115,000)           
Capital Contributions 2,312,667         7,212,375         -                          9,525,042         

Total transfers and capital contributions 2,247,667         7,202,375         -                          9,450,042         

Change in Net Position 3,518,007         7,374,341         33,074               10,925,422       

Net Position, Beginning of Year 3,729,899         4,927,307         58,995               8,716,201         

Net Position, End of Year 7,247,906$       12,301,648$     92,069$             19,641,623$     
 

 DRAFT



 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 17 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

Water Sewer Garbage Total

Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users 354,221$           504,656$           315,165$           1,174,042$       
Payments to employees (103,434)           (68,935)              -                          (172,369)           
Payments to vendors (51,808)              (125,069)           (295,153)           (472,030)           

Net cash from operating activities 198,979             310,652             20,012               529,643             

Non-Capital Financing Activities
Net transfer (to) from other funds (65,000)              (10,000)              -                          (75,000)              
Change in interfund balances 1,543,716         (320,652)           -                          1,223,064         

Net cash from (used for)
non-capital financing activities 1,478,716         (330,652)           -                          1,148,064         

Capital and Related Financing Activities  
Capital asset additions (2,278,588)        -                          -                          (2,278,588)        
Proceeds from long-term debt 578,415             -                          -                          578,415             
Payments on long-term debt

Principal (40,000)              -                          -                          (40,000)              
Interest (6,900)                -                          -                          (6,900)                

Net cash used for capital
and related financing activities (1,747,073)        -                          -                          (1,747,073)        

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (69,378)              (20,000)              20,012               (69,366)              

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 69,378               20,000               22,997               112,375             

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year -$                        -$                        43,009$             43,009$             

Reconciliation of Operating Income
to Net Cash From Operating Activities
Operating income 43,703$             171,966$           33,074$             248,743$           
Adjustments to reconcile operating  

 income to net cash
from operating activities
Depreciation 95,159               159,310             -                          254,469             

Changes in assets and liabilities  
Accounts receivable (17,336)              (19,883)              (12,811)              (50,030)              
Accounts payable 74,999               (2,375)                (251)                   72,373               
Other liabilities 1,344                 894                     -                          2,238                 
Compensated absences payable 1,110                 740                     -                          1,850                 

Net cash from operating activities 198,979$           310,652$           20,012$             529,643$           

    
Schedule of Non-Cash Capital and Related

 Financing Activities
Capital contributions 2,312,667$       7,212,375$       -$                        9,525,042$       

Purchase of capital assets
 in retainage payable 213,768$           -$                        -$                        213,768$           

 
 

DRAFT



 

18 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Note 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The City of Horace, North Dakota, was incorporated under the laws of the State of North Dakota and operates 
under the Mayor-Council form of local government. The accounting policies of the City conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental units. The more significant of the government's 
accounting policies are described below. 
 
The basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America as applied to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles, 
which are primarily set forth in the GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Standards (GASB Codification). The City significant accounting policies are described below: 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The City’s financial statements include all funds for which the City is financially accountable. 
 
The City is a primary government because it is a special-purpose government that has a separately elected 
governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state or local governments. Additionally, 
the City is not included in any other governmental reporting entity. 
 
Component units are legally separate organizations for which elected officials of the primary government are 
financially accountable. The City is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s 
governing body and is either: 
 

 able to impose its will on that organization or 
 

 there is potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose financial 
burdens on the City. The City may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on 
the City. 

 
There are no component units reported within these financial statements. 
 
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The goal of government-wide financial statements is to present a broad overview of government’s finances. The 
basic statements that form the government-wide financial statements are the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities. These two statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the 
government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Exceptions to this rule are charges from the City’s water, sewer and garbage utilities, and other functions of the 
City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported from the 
various functions concerned. Governmental activities, which are normally financed through taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which are normally financed 
through user fees and charges for goods or services. 
 

DRAFT



 

19 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
The statement of activities reports gross direct expenses by function reduced by program revenues. This results 
in a measurement of net revenue or expense for each of the government’s activities. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues are directly associated with the function 
or business-type activity and include 1) charges for services and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions 
that are restricted to a particular function. Tax and other items not properly included among program revenues 
are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are prepared for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual 
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue 
as soon as eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Although agency funds have no 
measurement focus, they also use the accrual basis of accounting to recognize receivables and payables. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized as soon as they are 
both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period, 
except for the reimbursement revenues yet to be received from federal grants. These revenue sources are 
considered current reimbursement of current liabilities in the respective fiscal year. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well 
as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment 
is due. 
 
Taxes, special assessments, intergovernmental revenue, permits, charges for services and investment income 
associated with the current fiscal period are the major revenues that are considered to be susceptible to accrual 
and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period to the extent they are collected in 60 days. 
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the City receives cash. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
General – The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. All financial resources of the general 
government that are not required to be reported in another fund are accounted for in the general fund. 
 
Highway – This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for street and highway repair 
and maintenance. 
 
Sales Tax – This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for infrastructure 
improvements, economic development, job creation, and business retention, expansion, and recruitment 
through the City’s sales taxes. 

DRAFT



 

20 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Debt Service – This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest 
on all general obligation and special assessment bonds of governmental funds. 
 
Capital Projects – This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds. 
 
The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 
Water – This fund accounts for the provision of water utility service to the residents of the City. 
 
Sewer – This fund accounts for the provision of sanitary sewer service to the residents of the City. 
 
Garbage – This fund accounts for the provision of sanitation and garbage removal service to the residents of the 
City.  
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include the following: amounts received from those who purchase, use 
or directly benefit from a program; amounts received from parties outside the City that are restricted to one or 
more specific programs; and earnings on investments that are legally restricted for a specific program. Revenues 
that do not meet the previous criteria are reported as general revenues, including all taxes. 
 
Proprietary funds report operating revenues and expenses separately from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection 
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise 
funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the costs 
of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  
 
Other Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
 
An annual budget is adopted only for the general fund. The budget is adopted on a basis consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgetary comparisons presented in this report are on this 
budgetary basis. 
 
Appropriations are authorized by the city council at the fund level, which is the legal level of budgetary control. 
Administrative control is maintained through the establishment of more detailed line-item budget. 
 
The budget is legally enacted through passage of a budget ordinance no later than October 1. 
 
All unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end. 
 
Any changes in the total budget of each fund must be approved by a majority vote of the city council. 

DRAFT



 

21 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 
Cash balances from all funds are combined and invested to the extent available in authorized investments. 
Earnings from such investments are allocated to the respective funds on the basis of applicable cash balance 
participation by each fund. 
 
The City considers cash equivalents to be certificates of deposit, money market funds, and other highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. 
 
Receivable and Credit Policy 
 
Trade receivables are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms requiring payment 
within 30 days from the invoice date. The receivables are charged a late fee of $5.00 for water, sewer, and 
garbage charges, and $.25 for vector and forestry charges after 30 days from the invoice date. Payments on 
trade receivables are applied to the earliest unpaid invoices. The carrying amount of the trade receivables is 
reduced by an amount that reflects management’s best estimate of the amounts that will not be collected. 
There are no allowances included in any receivables on the financial statements.  
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, 
and similar items), mains and lines, and vehicles are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as 
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend lives 
are not capitalized. 
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over 
the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Buildings and improvements 20-75 years
Infrastructure 20-40 years
Heavy machinery and vehicles 5-12 years
Equipment 3-10 years
Mains and lines 20-50 years

 
 

DRAFT



 

22 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
All full-time, regular employees accrue 10 hours of vacation leave each month. Employees are allowed to carry 
over a maximum of 120 hours into the following calendar years. Accrued vacation hours exceeding 120 hours on 
December 31 of each year are paid in full to the employee. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued 
but unused vacation. 
 
All full-time, regular employees accrue 4 hours of sick leave each month. Employees are allowed to carry over a 
maximum of 120 hours of sick leave into the following year. Hours in excess of 120 on December 31 of each year 
will be forfeited. Upon termination, employees will not be paid for accrued but unused sick leave. 
 
Accumulated unpaid vested sick leave is accrued when incurred in government-wide proprietary fund financial 
statements. Such amounts, other than the current portion, are not accrued in governmental funds, but are 
recorded in the governmental activities in the government-wide statements. 
 
Long-Term Liabilities 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.  
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
Fund Balance 
 
The following classifications describe the relative strength of spending constraints: 
 
Nonspendable Fund Balance – represents amounts that cannot be spent due to form such as inventories, 
prepaids, long-term loans, and notes receivable, and property held for resale (unless the proceeds are restricted, 
committed or assigned). 
 
Restricted Fund Balance – represents amounts that exist when constraints are placed on the use of resources 
that are either externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments (or) restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation (i.e. Emergency fund). 
 
Committed Fund Balance – represents amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to the 
constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. These committed amounts cannot be used for any 
other purpose unless the government removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it 
previously employed to commit those amounts. (Example would be legislation, resolution, or ordinance). (ie. 
Sales tax ordinance, budget ordinance) 

DRAFT



 

23 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Assigned Fund Balance – represents amounts constrained by the City’s intent to be used for a specific purpose 
but are not restricted or committed. The Council has delegated the authority to assign these amounts to the City 
Administrator and the City Finance Director. Assigned amounts or changes to Assigned amounts will later be 
presented to the Council for review. 
 
Unassigned Fund Balance – represents the remaining residual balances that have not been restricted, 
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. 
 
The City Council establishes fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance or resolution. This is 
typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance commitment is further indicated 
in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fund. Assigned fund balance is established by 
City Council through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific purpose. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use nonspendable 
resources first, restricted second, committed third, assigned fourth and unassigned last. 
 
Net Position 
 
Net position represents the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources in the City’s financial statements. Net investment in capital assets consists of 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used 
to build or acquire the capital assets. Restricted net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Unrestricted net position is the net amount of assets, 
deferred inflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the 
determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position. 
 
Risk Management 
 
The City is exposed to various risks related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City currently participates in the North Dakota 
insurance reserve fund, North Dakota fire and tornado fund, state bonding fund and North Dakota Workforce 
Safety Insurance to cover claims. There have been no settled claims exceeding insurance coverage in any of the 
past three years. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
This separate financial statement element is reported in accordance with GASB Statement No. 65, Items 
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which clarifies the use of deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources to ensure consistency in financial reporting. Deferred inflows of resources 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item, unavailable revenue, 
reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues 
from property taxes and special assessments.  
 

DRAFT



 

24 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Property taxes and special assessment revenues that are measurable and met the eligibility criteria but not 
available within 60 days after the fiscal year-end are classified as deferred outflows of resources in the 
governmental fund financial statements, but recognized as revenues in the government-wide financial 
statements.  
 
 
Note 2 -  Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
 
Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations 
 
Budget control for the fund is established by its total appropriations. The General Fund had expenditures 
exceeding appropriations in the amount of $264,440 for the year ended December 31, 2021. These over 
expenditures were funded by future revenues and existing fund balance of the General Fund. 
 
 
Note 3 -  Deposits and Investments 
 
Deposits 
 
In accordance with the North Dakota Century Code, the City maintains deposits at depository banks designated 
by the governing board. All depositories are members of the Federal Reserve System. Deposits must either be 
deposited with the Bank of North Dakota or in other financial institutions situated and doing business within the 
state. Deposits, other than with the Bank of North Dakota, must be fully insured or bonded. In lieu of a bond, a 
financial institution may provide a pledge of securities equal to or greater than 110% of the deposits not covered 
by insurance or bonds. 
 
Authorized collateral includes bills, notes, or bonds issued by the United States government, its agencies or 
instrumentalities, all bonds and notes guaranteed by the United States government, Federal Land Bank bonds, 
bonds, notes, warrants, certificates of indebtedness, insured certificates of deposit, shares of investment 
companies registered under the Investment Companies Act of 1940, and all other forms of securities issued by 
the State of North Dakota, its boards, agencies or instrumentalities or by any county, city, township, school 
district, park district, or other political subdivision of the State of North Dakota whether payable from special 
revenues or supported by the full faith and credit of the issuing body, and bonds issued by any other state of the 
United States, or such other securities approved by the banking board. 
 
As of December 31, 2021, the City’s deposits include checking accounts, money market funds, and certificates of 
deposit. 
 
Investments 
 
Statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury Investments and U.S. agencies, bankers’ 
acceptances, certain repurchase agreements, and commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's Corporation 
or P-1 by Moody's Commercial Paper Record. The City has no such investments at the year ended December 31, 
2021. 
 

DRAFT



 

25 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned 
to it. Beyond what is stated in the Century Code, the City does not have a formal policy to further limit exposure 
to custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2021, the City’s deposits were either fully insured or properly 
collateralized. 
 
Interest Rate Risk – Investments 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
North Dakota Century Code limits investing funds primarily in the short- and intermediate-term liquid securities 
of high credit quality to ensure adequate liquidity and to minimize the impact of changes in interest rates. 
Portfolios are structured so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands. 
The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its 
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
State statutes authorize investments in obligations of the U.S. Treasury Investments and U.S. agencies, bankers’ 
acceptances, certain repurchase agreements, and commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's Corporation 
or P-1 by Moody's Commercial Paper Record. The City has no such investments. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer. 
 
The following table presents the City’s deposit balances at December 31, 2021: 
 

Maturities (in Years)

Type Fair Value N/A < 1

Cash and cash equivalents
Checking accounts 172,348$           172,348$           -$                        
Money market 3,078,973         3,078,973         -                          
Certificates of deposit 15,353,574       -                          15,353,574       

18,604,895$     3,251,321$       15,353,574$     
 

DRAFT



 

26 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Note 4 -  Property Taxes and Special Assessments 
 
Property Taxes 
 
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property on January 1. The tax levy may be paid in two 
installments: the first installment includes one-half of the real estate taxes and all the special assessments; the 
second installment is the balance of the real estate taxes. The first installment is due by March 1 and the second 
installment is due by October 15. A 5% discount is allowed if all taxes are paid by February 15. After the due 
dates, the bill becomes delinquent and penalties are assessed. 
 
Taxes which remain unpaid at December 31 are classified as delinquent taxes receivable and the portion not 
available within 60 days is fully offset by unavailable revenue, a deferred inflow of resources, because it is not 
available to finance current expenditures. The delinquent taxes receivable represents the past five years of 
uncollected tax levies.  
 
Special Assessments 
 
Special assessments are levied against the benefited properties for the assessable costs of special assessment 
improvement projects in accordance with state statutes. The assessments are collectible over a term of years 
generally consistent with the term of years of the related bond issue. Collection of annual installments (including 
interest) is handled by the county and remitted to the City at the same time property tax settlements are made. 
Property owners are allowed to prepay total future installments plus accrued interest without prepayment 
penalties. Special assessments are generally collected by the county and remitted to the City at the same time 
the tax settlements are made. Special assessments receivable includes the following components: 
 
Delinquent – amounts billed to property owners but not paid 
 
Deferred – assessment installments that will be billed to property owners in future years 
 
Special assessments receivable not collected within 60 days following year end are offset by unavailable 
revenue, a deferred inflow of resources, because they are not available to finance current expenditures. 
 
 
Note 5 -  Tax Abatements 
 
The City provides tax abatements through one program, Property Tax Exemption of certain New Single Family, 
Condominium, and Townhouse Residential Properties. This exemption allows for newly constructed homes, 
excluding land, to possibly be exempt for up to two years from when construction begins. 
 
The following is information relevant to the disclosure of this program for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2021: 
 
Tax Abatement Program

Property Tax Incentives for New Single Family, Condo, and 
Townhouse Residential Properties 50,866$             

 

DRAFT



 

27 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Note 6 -  Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows: 
 

Beginning
Balance, Increases Decreases Ending

(As Restated) and Transfers and Transfers Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land 1,882,889$       -$                        -$                        1,882,889$       
Construction in progress 37,823,577       20,329,335       48,450,387       9,702,525         

Total capital assets not being depreciated 39,706,466       20,329,335       48,450,387       11,585,414       

Capital assets, being depreciated
Infrastructure 12,004,814       35,771,561       -                          47,776,375       
Buildings and improvements 279,086             -                          -                          279,086             
Machinery and equipment 773,343             25,442               -                          798,785             
Vehicles 296,670             -                          13,500               283,170             

Total capital assets being depreciated 13,353,913       35,797,003       13,500               49,137,416       

Less accumulated depreciation for
Infrastructure 1,916,329         617,316             -                          2,533,645         
Buildings and improvements 95,137               10,931               -                          106,068             
Machinery and equipment 229,478             67,744               -                          297,222             
Vehicles 113,629             23,978               13,500               124,107             

Total accumulated depreciation 2,354,573         719,969             13,500               3,061,042         

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 10,999,340       35,077,034       -                          46,076,374       

Governmental activities capital 
assets, net 50,705,806$     55,406,369$     48,450,387$     57,661,788$     

Governmental Activities

 
  DRAFT



 

28 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 

Beginning
Balance, Increases Decreases Ending

(As Restated) and Transfers and Transfers Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Construction in progress 87,874$             2,404,482$       -$                        2,492,356$       

Capital assets, being depreciated
Machinery and equipment 18,660$             -$                        -$                        18,660$             
Infrastructure 10,300,710       9,525,042         -                          19,825,752       

Total capital assets being depreciated 10,319,370       9,525,042         -                          19,844,412       

Less accumulated depreciation for
Machinery and equipment 2,404                 1,866                 -                          4,270                 
Infrastructure 1,251,248         252,603             -                          1,503,851         

Total accumulated depreciation 1,253,652         254,469             -                          1,508,121         

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 9,065,718         9,270,573         -                          18,336,291       

Business-type activities capital 
assets, net 9,153,592$       11,675,055$     -$                        20,828,647$     

Business-Type Activities

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the government as follows: 
 
Governmental Activities

General government 45,333$             
Public works 674,636             

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 719,969$           

Business-Type Activities
Water 95,159$             
Sewer 159,310             

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 254,469$           
 

DRAFT



 

29 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Note 7 -  Long-Term Debt 
 
Special assessment and temporary refunding improvement bonds are recorded as a liability in the governmental 
activities in the government-wide statement and are payable from the debt service funds primarily through 
special assessments levied and collected for local improvements. The City has a commitment relating to a pledge 
of full faith and credit on the special assessment bonds. The general credit of the City is obligated only to the 
extent that liens foreclosed against properties involved in the special assessment districts are insufficient to 
retire outstanding bonds. 
 
All special assessment bonds are refunding bonds. North Dakota state law requires that these be called 
refunding bonds because warrants are the first issuance that are refunded with the bond issuance. Special 
assessments bonds are repaid through the debt service funds. 
 
State revolving fund loans in the governmental activities are repaid through the debt service funds. State 
revolving fund loans in the business-type activities are repaid through the water fund. 
 
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt of the City for the year ended December 31, 2021: 
 

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental activities
Special Assessment Bonds 33,443,405$     24,540,000$     897,756$           57,085,649$     1,803,140$       
Temporary Refunding

Improvement Bonds 25,715,000       19,155,000       25,715,000       19,155,000       -                          
State Revolving Fund Loans 2,519,107         54,693               215,000             2,358,800         215,000             
Unamortized Premium on

Bond Issuance -                          1,176,014         19,648               1,156,366         47,493               
Direct borrowings,

capital leases payable 224,871             -                          21,500               203,371             22,407               
Compensated absences 22,597               35,242               32,718               25,121               25,121               

Governmental activity
long-term debt 61,924,980$     44,960,949$     26,901,622$     79,984,307$     2,113,161$       

Business-type activities
State Revolving Fund Loans 345,000$           578,415$           40,000$             883,415$           155,000$           
Compensated absences 4,607                 6,187                 4,337                 6,457                 6,457                 

Business-type activity 
long-term debt 349,607$           584,602$           44,337$             889,872$           161,457$           

 
  

DRAFT



 

30 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the City issued $9,010,000 of Temporary Refunding Improvement 
Bonds Series 2021A, to finance various municipal improvement projects. The bonds bear an interest rate of .65% 
and call for semiannual interest payments commencing February 2022 through August 2023, at which time the 
full amount of the bonds is due. The City intends to issue special assessment bonds to refund the bonds upon 
maturity. Payment on those bonds will be made from the debt service fund through special assessments levied 
against the benefitting properties.  
 
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the City issued $10,145,000 of Temporary Refunding Improvement 
Bonds Series 2021B, to finance various municipal improvement projects. The bonds bear an interest rate of .60% 
and call for semiannual interest payments commencing April 2022 through October 2023, at which time the full 
amount of the bonds is due. The City intends to issue special assessment bonds to refund the bonds upon 
maturity. Payment on those bonds will be made from the debt service fund through special assessments levied 
against the benefitting properties. 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the City issued $24,540,000 of Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series 
2021, to refund the Temporary Refunding Improvement Bonds Series 2020A. The bonds bear an interest rate of 
3.00% and call for semiannual interest payments commencing May 2022 and annual principal payments 
commencing May 1, 2022 through May 2046. The City did not receive a significant economic gain as a result of 
the Refunding. Payment on these bonds is made from the debt service fund through special assessments levied 
against the benefitting properties. 
 
In prior years, the City was awarded a loan of up to $1,340,000 through the North Dakota Public Financing 
Authority to finance improvements and expansions to the sewer system. During the year ended December 31, 
2021, the City drew an additional $54,693 on this loan. This loan will be repaid through the debt service fund via 
special assessments levied against the benefiting properties. 
 
During the year ended December 31,2021, the City was awarded a loan of up to $2,740,000 through the North 
Dakota Public Financing Authority to finance improvements and expansions to the water system. During the 
year ended December 31, 2021, the City drew $578,415 on this loan. This loan will be repaid through utility 
revenues collected in the water fund. 
  DRAFT



 

31 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Outstanding bonded debt and loans as of December 31, 2021, is as follows: 
 

Final Year of Authorized
Interest Rate Maturity and Issued Outstanding

Governmental Activities
2008 Refunding Improvement Bond 4.95 2024 98,000$              25,649$              
2007 Refunding Improvement Bonds 3.75 - 4.50 2022 565,000              40,000                
2015 Refunding Improvement Bonds 1.10 - 4.00 2040 3,590,000           2,735,000           
2017 Refunding Improvement Bond 1.60 - 4.00 2042 5,875,000           5,500,000           
2018 Refunding Improvement Bonds 2.50 - 4.00 2043 450,000              405,000              
2018B Refunding Improvement Bonds 2.15 - 4.25 2043 3,885,000           3,605,000           
2020B Refunding Improvement Bonds 2.10 - 3.50 2033 20,575,000         20,235,000         
2021A Temporary Refunding Improvement Bonds 0.65 2023 9,010,000           9,010,000           
2021 Temporary Refunding Improvement Bonds 0.60 2023 10,145,000         10,145,000         
2021 Refunding Improvement Bonds 3.00 2046 24,540,000         24,540,000         
2016 ND Public Finance Authority Wastewater

Treatment Assessment Loan 2.00 2037 1,340,000           772,648              
2017 ND Public Finance Authority Drinking

Water Loan 2.00 2036 580,000              400,000              
2017B ND Public Finance Authority Wastewater

Treatment Assessment Loan 2.00 2037 1,728,152           1,186,152           

Total 78,599,449$       

Business-Type Activities
2018 ND Public Finance Authority Water 

Meter Loan 2.00 2028 422,000$            305,000$            
2021 ND Public Finance Authority Water

Treatment Loan 1.50 2041 2,740,000$         578,415              
Total

883,415$            

 
The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt and loans debt outstanding as of December 31, 2021, are 
as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Principal Interest Principal Interest

2,018,140$       2,018,583$       155,000$           35,125$             
21,173,543       1,838,117         155,000             43,350               

2,068,966         1,663,410         160,000             41,025               
2,110,000         1,605,916         165,000             38,625               
2,170,000         1,546,452         158,415             36,150               

2027-2031 11,361,152       6,723,594         90,000               2,025                 
2032-2036 12,247,648       4,974,147         -                          -                          
2037-2041 13,715,000       2,919,401         -                          -                          
2042-2046 11,735,000       793,738             -                          -                          

Total 78,599,449$     24,083,358$     883,415$           196,300$           

Years Ending December 31,

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

  

DRAFT



 

32 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Direct borrowings capital leases payable consist of equipment with a total cost of $339,252, and total 
accumulated depreciation of $42,731 as of December 31, 2021. The direct borrowing capital lease payable 
agreements include provisions that in the event of default, the property will be repossessed. Payments on 
capital leases are made out of the general fund. 
 
Outstanding direct borrowing capital leases payable as of December 31, 2021, is as follows: 
 

 Original  Outstanding 
 Interest Rate  Final Maturities   Principal   Balance 

Governmental Activities
Motor Grader 3.85 2027 199,327$            183,753$            
Mower 5.01 2024 32,749                19,618                

203,371$            

 
The annual requirements to amortize the direct borrowing capital leases payable outstanding as of December 
31, 2021, are as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities
Principal Interest

22,407$             8,184$               
23,355               7,237                 
24,341               6,251                 
18,164               5,222                 
18,875               4,511                 

2027 96,229               3,771                 

Total 203,371$           35,176$             

2026

Years Ending December 31,

2022
2023
2024
2025

 
There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is in 
substantial compliance with significant limitations and restrictions as of December 31, 2021. 
 
 DRAFT



 

33 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Compensated absences for governmental funds are recorded as a liability in the governmental activities in the 
government-wide statement. This liability matures only upon qualified retirements or terminations and is paid 
out of the general fund. 
 
Conduit Debt 
 
From time to time, the City has approved issuance of Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-
sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the 
public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received 
on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers 
to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the City, the State, nor any political subdivision 
thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as 
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
In 2013, the City entered into an agreement with Eventide Senior Living Communities, a nonprofit corporation, 
to issue Health Care Revenue Notes, Series 2013B and 2013C, in an aggregate not to exceed $4,960,000 and 
$1,040,000, respectively, to partially finance the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a 96-bed skilled 
nursing home. At December 31, 2021, the notes had an aggregate outstanding balance of $4,335,219. 
 
In 2015, the City entered into an agreement with the YMCA of Cass and Clay Counties, a North Dakota nonprofit 
corporation, to issue Wellness Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 in an aggregate amount not to exceed 
$3,000,000 for the purposes of (i) renovating and constructing an addition to the aquatic facilities and (ii) paying 
the cost of issuance. At December 31, 2021, the notes had an aggregate outstanding balance of $1,735,363. 
 
 
Note 8 -  Interfund Receivables, Payables, Transfers, and Capital Contributions 
 
Interfund receivables/payables are used to record accrued obligations between funds. The following interfund 
receivables/payables existed at December 31, 2021: 
 

Due From Due To 
Other Funds Other Funds

General 1,398,995$       -$                        
Water -                          863,839             
Sewer -                          535,156             

1,398,995$       1,398,995$       
 

 

DRAFT



 

34 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
A summary of the City’s interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2021, is as follows: 
 

Transfer In Transfer Out
Governmental Funds

General 3,016,592$       4,168,592$       
Sales Tax 400,000             400,000             
Debt Service -                          413,327             
Capital Projects 3,640,327         2,000,000         

Total governmental funds 7,056,919         6,981,919         

Proprietary Funds
Water -                          65,000               
Sewer 40,000               50,000               

Total proprietary funds 40,000               115,000             

Total transfers 7,096,919$       7,096,919$       
 

Transfers are made for funding various projects, operational expenses, and meeting debt service requirements.  
 
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the governmental activities made capital contributions to the water 
and sewer funds of $4,020,862 and $7,212,375, respectively. These amounts represent the water and sewer 
portions of infrastructure projects constructed within the capital projects fund. 
 
 
Note 9 -  Retirement Plan 
 
The City of Horace provides a retirement plan for City employees. The plan is a 457(b) deferred compensation 
plan in which the City contributes an amount established by the governing board, currently a percent match of 
employee contributions, not to exceed 6% of gross salaries for each eligible employee. Employees are eligible for 
the plan immediately upon hiring and are 100% vested in all employer contributions. An employee’s 
contribution can be any amount less than or equal to the maximum amount allowed by law. A deduction is 
made with each pay period and forwarded to the plan account monthly, which is maintained by Nationwide. 
Upon termination of employment, the employee will receive his or her vested portion of the contribution. The 
City’s share of retirement costs for the year December 31, 2021, was $44,963.  
 
 

DRAFT



 

35 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Note 10 -  Commitments 
 
Cass Rural Water Users District Agreement – Portions of new developments of the City lay within the service 
territory of Cass Rural Water Users District (the District). The District has the exclusive right to provide water and 
water service to properties located within the District’s service territory. Therefore, the City and the District 
have entered into an agreement in which the City agreed to construct the needed water infrastructure within 
the new development areas located within District territory. Upon completion, the City will sell the 
infrastructure within District territory to the District at the City’s cost plus 13%. As of December 31, 2021, the 
City has incurred $XXX of construction costs reported as construction in progress related to infrastructure that 
will be sold to the District upon completion. 
 
Diversion Project Cost Share Agreement – The Fargo Moorhead Diversion Authority has a cost sharing agreement 
with the City in relation to the Fargo Moorhead Diversion Project. The Fargo Moorhead Diversion Authority will 
contribute 80% of the costs the City incurs to its infrastructure system in relation to the Fargo Moorhead 
Diversion Project. The City will contribute the remaining 20% match to the contribution from the Authority. The 
Diversion Authority will provide the match to the City with reimbursements up to a total amount of $5,000,000. 
To date, the City has not incurred any costs to its infrastructure system. 
 
Construction Commitments – The City has the following active construction projects as of December 31, 2021. 
 

Ending Total Expected Expected
Project Balance Cost Completion

8th Avenue Extension (2017-5) 7,674$               Preliminary* Preliminary*
County Road 17 Shared Use Path 17,338               100,000             2022
Sanitary Sewer to 64th Ave (2019-4) 91,068               300,000             2022
82nd Street Construction (2020-2) 2,711,402         2,845,339         2022
Oxbow Drainage (2020-5) 23,871               Preliminary* Preliminary*
Line Replacement Water Impr Dist (2020-6) 1,829,791         4,974,586         2022
Connection to Cass Rural Water Impr Dist (2020-7) 662,564             5,299,431         2022
Terra Gardens 3rd Addition (2021-2) 1,296,079         2,339,877         2022
Lakeview Addition (2021-3) 5,541,554         8,148,971         2022
Arrowwood 3rd Addition (2021-5) 5,335                 2,257,088         2023
Lift Station SA-13 Horseshoe Bend (2021-6) 123                     892,280             2022
Deer Creek Estates (2021-7) 4,664                 Preliminary* Preliminary*
Lost River 7th Addition (2022-2) 345                     3,568,508         2023
Maple Lake Estates Addition - Phase 2 (2022-5) 115                     3,844,929         2023
Southdale Farms Fourth Addition (2022-6) 2,958                 15,238,732       2023

12,194,881$      
 
*Preliminary indicates projects that are in initial stages and scope of work is unable to be determined at this 
time

DRAFT



 

36 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Note 11 -  Restatement 
 
As of January 1, 2021, the City determined that the Capital Projects Fund incorrectly recorded expenditures 
relating to Water Fund specific construction projects, in the total amount of $87,874. This has resulted in a 
restatement of the fund balance of the Capital Projects Fund and construction in progress balance of 
Governmental Activities, the Water Fund, and Business-Type Activities as of January 1, 2020. The following 
tables describes the effects of the restatement on beginning fund balance and construction in progress. 
 

Capital
Projects

Fund

Fund Balance - December 31, 2020, as previously reported 10,641,269$     

Restatement due to:
Reclassification of project expenses to Water Fund 87,874               

Fund Balance - January 1, 2021, as restated 10,729,143$     
 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Water Fund Activities

Construction in progress - December 31, 2020, as previously reported 37,911,451$     -$                        -$                        

Restatement due to:
Reclassification of construction in progress to Water Fund (87,874)              87,874               87,874               

Construction in progress - January 1, 2021, as restated 37,823,577$     87,874$             87,874$             
 

 
Note 12 -  Subsequent Events 
 
Subsequent to year end, the city issued Temporary Refunding Bonds Series 2022A for $35,890,000 at an interest 
rate of 3.88%. The bonds will be used to finance costs of street, water and sewer projects. 
 
Subsequent to year end, the city issued Temporary Refunding Bonds Series 2022B for $23,700,000 at an interest 
rate of 4.00%. The bonds will be used to finance costs of street, water and sewer projects. 
 

DRAFT



 

 
 

 
Supplementary Information 
December 31, 2021 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
 

DRAFT



 

37 
 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

December 31, 2021 
 
 

Pass-through
Federal Financial Entity 

Assistance Identifying  
Listing Number Expenditures

Department of Environmental Protection Agency

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Cluster
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66.468 Unknown 906,500$           

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

Passed through the North Dakota Deparment of Environmental Quality

 

DRAFT



 

38 
 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

December 31, 2021 
 
 
Note 1 -  Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal award activity of the City 
under programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2021. The information is presented 
in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not intended to and 
does not present the financial position, changes in net position or fund balance, or cash flows of the City. 
 
 
Note 2 -  Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Expenditures reported in the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis. When applicable, such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain 
types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. No federal financial assistance has 
been provided to a subrecipient. 
 
 
Note 3 -  Indirect Cost Rate 
 
The City does not draw for indirect administrative expenses and has not elected to use the 10% de minimus cost 
rate. 
 

DRAFT



 

 

Additional Reports 
December 31, 2021 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
 

DRAFT



 

39 

 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Horace, North Dakota 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Horace, North Dakota (the 
“City”), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated REPORT DATE.  
 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements 
but are not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that have not been identified. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in 
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2021-001, 2021-002, 2021-003, 
and 2021-004 that we be consider to be material weaknesses.

DRAFT



 

40 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
City’s Response to Findings 
 
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City’s 
response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings 
and Questioned Costs. The City’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Fargo, North Dakota 
REPORT DATE 

DRAFT



 

41 

 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program and Report on Internal 
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Commissioners 
City of Horace, North Dakota 
 
 
Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 
 
Opinion on the Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited City of Horace, North Dakota (the “City”) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on the City’s major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2021.The 
City’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended 
December 31, 2021. 
 
Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing 
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the 
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of City’s compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
  

DRAFT



 

42 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
  
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements 
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
City‘s federal program.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material 
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is 
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about the City’s compliance with the requirements of the major federal program 
as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the City’s compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the City’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

DRAFT



 

43 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below we did identify certain 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is 
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in internal control over 
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-005 
to be a material weakness. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  
 
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City’s 
response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our compliance audit described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City’s response was not subjected to 
the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the response. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
 
Fargo, North Dakota 
REPORT DATE 

DRAFT



 

44 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 
 
 

Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor's report issued Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified Yes
Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over major program:
Material weaknesses identified Yes
Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516: Yes

Identification of major programs:

Federal Financial Assistance Listing

Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66.468

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A 
and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No

Name of Federal Program DRAFT



 

45 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 
 
 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
2021-001  Segregation of Duties 
  Material Weakness 
 
Criteria – A good system of internal control requires an adequate segregation of duties so that no one individual 
has incompatible responsibilities. No one person should have more than one duty relating to the authorization 
(approval), custody of assets (check signers), record keeping, and reconciliation functions. 
 
Condition – The City does not have enough staff to adequately separate duties in cash receipts, cash 
disbursements, payroll and related liabilities, and general ledger maintenance and reconciliation. 
 
Cause – There is a limited amount of office employees involved in the internal control process. 
 
Effect – Inadequate segregation of duties could adversely affect the City's ability to detect misstatements in 
amounts that would-be material in relation to the financial statements in a timely period by employees in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions. 
 
Recommendation – The functions should be reviewed to determine if additional segregation of duties is feasible 
and to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of financial management and financial statement accuracy for 
the City. Segregation of authorization, custody of assets, record keeping, and reconciliation functions would 
assist in mitigating the risk of fraud or misstatements to the financial statements.  
 
Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 
 

DRAFT



 

46 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 
 
 
2021-002  Material Journal Entries, including Restatement 
  Material Weakness 
 
Criteria – A good system of internal accounting control contemplates an adequate system for recording and 
processing entries material to the financial statements. 
 
Condition – During the course of our engagement, we proposed numerous audit adjustments, including 
restatement, that would not have been identified as a result of the City’s existing internal controls, and 
therefore could have resulted in a misstatement of the City’s financial statements.  
 
Cause – The City does not have an internal control system designed to identify all necessary adjustments. 
 
Effect – This control deficiency could result in a misstatement to the financial statements that would not be 
prevented or detected. 
 
Recommendation – A thorough review and reconciliation of accounts in each fund should take place prior to the 
beginning of the audit. This review should be done at both the accounting staff and accounting supervisor levels. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 
 
2021-003  Preparation of Financial Statements including Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
  Material Weakness 
 
Criteria – A good system of internal accounting control contemplates an adequate system for internally 
preparing the City’s financial statements and schedule of federal awards (“SEFA”). 
 
Condition – The City does not have an internal control system designed to provide for the preparation of the 
financial statements and SEFA being audited. The auditors were requested to, and did, draft the financial 
statements and accompanying notes to the financial statements and SEFA. 
 
Cause – The City does not have an internal control system designed to provide for the preparation of the 
financial statements and SEFA being audited. 
 
Effect – The disclosures in the financial statements could be incomplete. 
 
Recommendation – It is the responsibility of management and those charged with governance to make the 
decision whether to accept the degree of risk associated with this condition because of cost or other 
considerations. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

47 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 
 
 
2021-004 Account Reconciliation Differences 
  Material Weakness 
 
Criteria – A good system of internal accounting control contemplates an adequate system for 
correcting all differences noted between the trial balance and subledgers or supporting schedules. 
 
Condition – During the course of our engagement, we identified differences in account 
reconciliations that would not have been identified as a result of the City’s existing internal 
controls. 
 
Cause – The City does not have an internal control system designed to identify accurately 
reconcile all accounts. 
 
Effect – The disclosures in the financial statements could be incomplete. 
 
Recommendation – A thorough review and reconciliation of accounts in each fund should take 
place prior to the beginning of the audit. This review should be done at both the accounting 
staff and supervisor levels. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 
 
 

DRAFT



 

48 

City of Horace, North Dakota 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 
 
 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
2021-005  Department of Environmental Protection Agency, Passed through North Dakota Department 

of Environmental Quality 
Federal Financial Assistance Listing/CFDA Number 66.468 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Cluster 
 
Procurement, Suspension, and Debarment 
Material Weakness in Internal Control over Compliance 
 

Criteria – Uniform Guidance and 2 CFR sections 200.318 through 200.326 set forth the procurement standards 
non-federal entities other than states must follow when operating federal programs and the procurement 
procedures required. 
 
Condition – During the course of our engagement, it was identified that the City did not have a written policy on 
procurement that satisfied the requirements of 2 CFR sections 200.318 through 200.326. 
 
Cause – Lack of oversight, awareness, or understanding of all of the specific requirements under the Uniform 
Guidance and applicable CFR sections and controls were not adequately designed to ensure compliance with all 
of these requirements. 
 
Effect – A lack of documented policies increase the overall risk that employees are not aware of the specific 
requirements with of procurement, suspension, and debarment. 
 
Questioned Costs – None reported 
 
Context/Sampling – All applicable vendors were selected for testing. 
 
Repeat Finding from Prior Year(s) – No 
 
Recommendation – We recommend that management establish a written policy that addresses all of the 
procurement requirements for federal programs as identified in 2 CFR sections 200.318 through 200.326 and 
maintain adequate supporting documentation and records to document history and methods of procurement 
and the procedures performed to comply with these CFR sections. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials – There is no disagreement with the audit finding. 

DRAFT



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF  
IMPROVEMENT WARRANTS AND EXCHANGING THEM FOR REFUNDING 

IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2023A 
(PARAMETERS RESOLUTION) 

 
of the 

 
CITY OF HORACE, NORTH DAKOTA 

 
Adopted:  March 6, 2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This instrument was drafted by: 
 
Ohnstad Twichell, P.C. 
P.O. Box 458 
West Fargo, ND 58078-0458 
 



 

 Member _____________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption: 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 
IMPROVEMENT WARRANTS AND EXCHANGING THEM FOR 

REFUNDING IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2023A 
(PARAMETERS RESOLUTION) 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Horace, North Dakota (the “Issuer”) has previously created one or 
more improvement districts as set out in this Resolution for the purpose of constructing municipal 
improvements (the “Improvements”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, to finance such Improvements, the Issuer by resolutions heretofore authorized 
the issuance of certain temporary improvement warrants (the “Temporary Warrants”) of the Issuer; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 40-27 of the North Dakota Century Code, the Issuer 
immediately exchanged the Temporary Warrants for its $9,010,000 Temporary Refunding 
Improvement Bonds, Series 2021A and its $10,145,000 Temporary Refunding Improvement 
Bonds, Series 2021B (together the “Temporary Bonds”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Issuer, as provided in the resolutions for the Temporary Bonds, now 
desires to provide for the retirement of the Temporary Bonds through the issuance of certain 
definitive improvement warrants (the “Definitive Warrants”) and to levy assessments on the 
property in the Districts (as defined herein) to pay for the Definitive Warrants; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 40-27 of the North Dakota Century Code, the Issuer will 
immediately exchange the Definitive Warrants for its Refunding Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2023A (the “Bonds”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body does hereby create a Pricing Committee composed of 
the Mayor and City Auditor and grant them the authority to accept bids on the Bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Pricing Committee is hereby authorized to accept a bid at a later date for 
the Bonds, provided the maximum par amount of the Bonds does not exceed $21,000,000 and the 
maximum net interest costs on the Bonds do not exceed 5.85%. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the City of Horace, 
North Dakota, as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Legal Authorization. 
 

1.01. The Issuer has duly created Water, Sewer, Storm and Street Imrovement District 
No. 2021-1; Water, Sewer, Storm and Street Improvement District No. 2021-2; Water, Sewer, 
Storm and Street Improvement District No. 2021-3; and Water, Sewer, Storm and Street 
Improvement District No. 2021-5 (collectively, the “Districts”), and has duly ordered, received, 
and approved engineer’s reports and the estimates of the costs of the Issuer’s portion of the 
acquisition, construction, improvement, and development of the Improvements which will be of 
special benefit to the properties in the Districts.  It is determined that the total benefits which will 



 

2 

result from the improvement to properties within the Districts will not be less than the cost thereof 
to the Issuer.  It is now necessary for the Issuer to borrow in anticipation of the collection of special 
assessments levied for the Improvements.  All acts, conditions, and things required by the 
Constitution and laws of the State of North Dakota to be done, to exist, to happen, and to be 
performed preliminary to the issuance and sale of the Bonds authorized herein have been done, do 
exist, have happened, and have been performed as so required. 
 

Section 2. Not to Exceed. 
 
2.01. The Pricing Committee is authorized to complete the following Resolution in 

substantially the same form as presented, provided the maximum par amount of the Bonds does 
not exceed $21,000,000 and the maximum net interest costs on the Bonds do not exceed 5.85%. 

 
Section 3. Authorization and Sale. 
 
3.01. There is hereby authorized to be issued a series of bonds designated the Issuer’s 

Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series 2023A.  The Pricing Committee shall have the authority to 
negotiate the terms of the Bonds with Colliers Securities LLC, as underwriter, in accordance with 
Section 2 hereof, to determine the final par amount and amortization schedule for the Bonds 
without further action of the governing body of the Issuer (the “Governing Body”), and to 
complete the Certificate of Pricing Committee. 

 
3.02. The Bond Purchase Agreement, substantially in the form presented at this meeting, 

is hereby approved.  The Bond Purchase Agreement is authorized to be executed in the name of 
the Issuer by the Mayor and the City Auditor, at such time, if any, as they deem appropriate, or 
executed to or attested to by other officers of the Issuer, in substantially the form on file, but with 
all such changes therein, not inconsistent with the Applicable Law, as may be approved by the 
officers executing the same, which approval shall be conclusively evidenced by execution thereof. 

 
Section 4. Covenant to Complete Levy of Special Assessments. 
 
4.01. The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees with the holders from time to time of all 

Bonds herein authorized or referred to, that it will do and perform all acts and things necessary for 
the completion of the Improvements and for the valid and final levy of special assessments upon 
all properties within the Districts identified in Section 1.01 to be benefitted by the Improvements, 
in an aggregate amount equal to Issuer’s portion of the cost of said Improvements, which special 
assessments shall be payable as the Governing Body shall determine in accordance with law to be 
collectible for a period of years commencing not later than 2023, with interest on installments 
thereof from time to time remaining unpaid at a rate determined by the Governing Body in 
accordance with the North Dakota Century Code, as amended, and that should any of such special 
assessments be at any time determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, it will take 
all such further actions and proceedings as may be required by law to make such assessment a 
valid and binding lien upon the properties in the Districts. 

 



 

3 

Section 5. The Districts. 
 
 5.01. Each Definitive Warrant shall bear interest from the date of issue until paid at a rate 
not to exceed 1.5% higher than the interest rate of the issue as set forth in the Certificate of Pricing 
Committee.  Interest is payable semi-annually on each May 1 and November 1, commencing 
November 1, 2023.  Each Definitive Warrant shall be exchanged for Bonds at closing.  The 
principal of and interest on each Definitive Warrant shall be payable at the office of the City 
Auditor.  Each Definitive Warrant shall be in the principal amounts set forth in the Certificate of 
Pricing Committee.  The following Districts have been established to pay for the Definitive 
Warrants. 
 
       Years       Years 
District Designation    Levied    Collected 
 
Water, Sewer, Storm 
and Street Improvement           2023-2047   2024-2048 
District No. 2021-1 
 
Water, Sewer, Storm  
and Street Improvement           2023-2047   2024-2048 
District No. 2021-2 
 
Water, Sewer, Storm 
and Street Improvement           2023-2047   2024-2048 
District No. 2021-3 
 
Water, Sewer, Storm 
and Street Improvement           2023-2047   2024-2048 
District No. 2021-5 
 
 5.02. Each Definitive Warrant shall be typewritten and photocopied in substantially the 
form attached hereto as Attachment B. 
 
 Section 6. Terms of Bonds. 
 
 6.01. The Bonds shall be dated their date of issuance.  Bonds issued upon exchange or 
transfer after November 1, 2023, shall be dated as of the interest payment date next preceding their 
issuance, or if the date of such issuance shall be on an interest payment date as of the date of such 
issue; provided, however, that if interest on the Bonds shall be in default, the Bonds shall be dated 
as of the date to which interest has been paid in full on the Bonds being transferred.  The Bonds 
shall be issued in fully registered form in denominations of $5,000 or any multiple thereof, of 
single maturities.  The Bonds shall be numbered in consecutive numerical order from R-1 upwards 
as issued and shall mature on May 1 in the years and in the amounts, and shall bear interest at the 
rates, set forth in the Certificate of Pricing Committee.  Interest on the Bonds shall be determined 
on the basis of a 360 day year. 
 



 

4 

 6.02. Interest on the Bonds and, upon presentation and surrender thereof, the principal 
thereof shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America by check or draft by 
Starion Bond Services, as Paying Agent, or its successor.  Interest shall be payable on May 1 and 
November 1 in each year, commencing November 1, 2023, to the holder of record on the close of 
the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the immediately preceding month.  Interest on the 
Bonds shall cease at maturity or on a date prior thereto on which they have been duly called for 
redemption unless the holder thereof shall present the same for payment and payment is refused. 
 
 Section 7. Redemption. 
 
 7.01. As set forth in the Certificate of Pricing Committee, the Bonds maturing in a certain 
year and thereafter may be redeemed prior to their respective maturity dates, at the option of the 
Issuer, at a price equal to the principal amount plus accrued interest.  Redemption may be in whole 
or in part, and if in part, at the option of the Issuer and in such manner as the Issuer shall determine 
and within a maturity by lot as selected by the Bond Registrar.  Not less than thirty (30) days prior 
to the date specified for redemption and prepayment of any of the Bonds, the Issuer will cause 
notice of the call thereof to be sent by mail to the Bond Registrar, Paying Agent, and registered 
owner of the Bond to be redeemed in whole or in part at the address shown on the registration 
books of the Bond Registrar. 
 
 7.02. The Pricing Committee shall designate any Bonds which are term bonds in the 
Certificate of Pricing Committee.  If there are term bonds, within ten (10) days before the thirtieth 
(30th) day prior to the redemption date, the Bond Registrar will proceed to select for redemption 
(by lot in such manner as the Bond Registrar may determine) from all outstanding term bonds a 
principal amount of such term bonds equal to the aggregate principal amount of such term bonds 
redeemable on the redemption date, and will call such term bonds or portions thereof ($5,000 in 
principal amount of any integral multiple thereof) for redemption on such redemption date and 
give notice to such call pursuant to the redemption provisions contained herein. 
 
 7.03. If and when the Issuer shall call any of the Bonds for redemption and prepayment 
prior to the stated maturity thereof, the Bond Registrar shall give written notice in the name of the 
Issuer of its intention to redeem and pay such Bonds at the office of the Bond Registrar.  Notice 
of redemption shall be mailed not less than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date, to each 
registered owner of Bonds to be redeemed, at the address appearing in the bond register.  All 
notices of optional redemption shall state: (i) the redemption date; (ii) the redemption price; (iii) if 
less than all outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification (and, in the case of partial 
redemption, the respective principal amounts) of the Bonds to be redeemed; (iv) that on the 
optional redemption date, the redemption price will become due and payable upon each such Bond, 
and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after said date; (v) the place where such 
Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price (which shall be at the office of 
the Bond Registrar); and (vi) include a statement that the redemption so noticed is conditioned on 
sufficient funds being held by the Issuer on or before noon on the applicable redemption date to 
pay the full redemption price, and if at such time the amount so held is not sufficient to pay all 
amounts required to effect the noticed redemption in full, the redemption shall be cancelled, with 
all Bonds tendered for such redemption being returned to the holders thereof and no liability on 
the Issuer shall arise as a result of such cancellation. 
 



 

5 

 Section 8. Execution. 
 
 8.01. The Bonds shall be prepared under the supervision and at the direction of the City 
Auditor, executed by the manual signature of the Mayor and attested to by the manual signature 
of the City Auditor and delivered to the holder at closing upon receipt of the purchase price plus 
interest.  The Bonds shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
security or benefit under this Resolution until the Certificate of Authentication thereon shall have 
been executed by the Bond Registrar by manual signature of one of its authorized representatives. 
 
 8.02. The Bonds shall be printed in substantially the form set forth in Attachment A to 
this Resolution. 
 
 Section 9. Funds. 
 
 9.01. Bond Fund. 
 

There shall be and is hereby established a special fund to be maintained by the City Auditor 
separate and apart from all other funds of the Issuer, to be designated as the Refunding 
Improvement Bonds, Series 2023A, Bond Fund (the “Bond Fund”).  Within the Bond Fund, the 
City Auditor shall establish four (4) separate accounts: (i) a Water, Sewer, Storm and Street 
Improvement District No. 2021-1 Account (the “2021-1 Account”); (ii) a Water, Sewer, Storm 
and Street Improvement District No. 2021-2 Account (the “2021-2 Account”); (iii) a Water, Sewer, 
Storm and Street Improvement District No. 2021-3 Account (the “2021-3 Account”); and (iv) a 
Water, Sewer, Storm and Street Improvement District No. 2021-5 Account (the “2021-5 
Account”).  The City Auditor will credit the corresponding Definitive Warrant for each District to 
the account created above for the District upon receipt and such Definitive Warrants shall 
thereupon become and shall thereafter be held as assets of such accounts, and the proceeds of all 
assessments for each Definitive Warrant so acquired shall be deposited into the corresponding 
District account in the Bond Fund, held by the Issuer in trust for the use and benefit of the holders 
from time to time of the Bonds herein authorized.  The assessments levied for each Definitive 
Warrant shall be continued and payments shall be made therefrom as though each Definitive 
Warrant had not been exchanged.  All payments of principal and interest made on each Definitive 
Warrant shall be credited to the associated District account in the Bond Fund and shall be used and 
applied in payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as such principal and interest 
become due.  Additionally, the City Auditor shall apply any funds remaining in a construction 
account for a District following the completion of construction of the Improvement to the 
associated account in the Bond Fund. 

 
In the event the moneys in the Bond Fund should at any time be insufficient to meet all 

payments of principal and interest then due on the Bonds, said moneys shall be first used to pay 
the interest accrued on all outstanding Bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution, and the balance 
shall be applied in payment of the principal of said Bonds in order of their maturity dates, earliest 
Bonds first, Bonds bearing the same maturity dates being paid pro rata.  The Issuer reserves the 
right and privilege of refunding any of such matured Bonds for the payment of which moneys are 
not at the time available by issuing new refunding improvement bonds payable from said fund, 
which refunding improvement bonds shall be on a parity with those theretofore issued as to interest 
charges thereon, but the maturity thereof shall be subsequent to the maturity of all Bonds payable 



 

6 

from said fund and then outstanding, provided that no holder of Bonds herein authorized to be 
issued shall be obligated to accept any such refunding improvement bond in exchange for any of 
such matured Bond. 

 
9.02. Refunding Fund. 
 
There shall be and is hereby established a special fund to be maintained by the City Auditor 

separate and apart from all other funds of the Issuer, to be designated as the Temporary Refunding 
Improvement Bond Refunding Fund (the “Refunding Fund”).  The proceeds of the Bonds (less 
certain amounts required to pay costs of issuance), available Issuer funds, and any funds remaining 
in the bond fund for the Temporary Bonds are hereby irrevocably appropriated to the Refunding 
Fund and, simultaneously with the delivery of the Bonds, shall be deposited into the Refunding 
Fund, along with obligations in obligation of or payment of or fully guaranteed by the United 
States, which will mature in such amounts and at such times, to provide for the full payment of the 
Temporary Bonds on April __, 2023.  Any funds remaining in the Refunding Fund following the 
redemption of the Temporary Bonds shall be deposited into the Bond Fund. 
 
 Section 10. Retirement of Temporary Bonds. 
 
 10.01. At closing, the Issuer shall deposit Bond proceeds, other funds of the Issuer, and 
any funds remaining in the bond funds for the Temporary Bonds into the Refunding Fund in an 
amount equal to the amount necessary to pay principal and interest, if any, on all of the Temporary 
Bonds on April __, 2023.  Alternatively, the Issuer will invest such funds in a manner so that the 
original funds, together with investment earnings, will be sufficient to pay the principal and 
interest, if any, on all of the Temporary Bonds on April __, 2023. 
 
 Section 11. Retirement of Temporary Warrants. 
 
 11.01. It is hereby found, determined, and declared that upon retirement of the Temporary 
Bonds, the Temporary Warrants shall be null and void and their lien upon special assessments 
remitted from properties benefited by the Districts shall be extinguished. 
 
 Section 12. Covenants of Issuer. 
 
 12.01. The Issuer will use due diligence to collect said Definitive Warrants and to levy 
and collect the special assessments appropriated for their payment. 
 
 12.02. The Issuer will preserve and enforce for the benefit of the holders from time to time 
of the Bonds all of the rights, powers, and privileges reserved to the holders of each Definitive 
Warrant. 
 
 12.03. At the time and in the manner prescribed by Section 40-26-08, North Dakota 
Century Code, as amended, this governing body will levy general taxes on all taxable property in 
the corporate limits of the Issuer and/or appropriate sums from all other legally available funds for 
the payment of any deficiency in any of said District funds and will cause the proceeds thereof to 
be applied in payment of the principal of and interest on the then unpaid Definitive Warrants drawn 
on said funds; provided that the Issuer reserves the right to levy taxes in the manner and to the 



 

7 

extent permitted by law and/or to appropriate sums from any other legally available funds for 
payment and discharge of any deficiency in said District funds paid to the date upon which it may 
become obligatory to levy such deficiency taxes, and the amounts thereof shall be credited against 
the levies which the Issuer might otherwise have been obligated to make. 
 
 Section 13. Negative Covenants. 
 
 13.01. The Issuer shall not (i) consent or agree to or permit any rescission of or amendment 
to the Definitive Warrants which would reduce the amount of the Definitive Warrant or which 
would in any manner materially impair or materially adversely affect the rights of, or the validity, 
perfection, or priority of the security interest of the Bondholders in and to, the Definitive Warrants, 
and (ii) amend, modify, or supplement, nor agree to any amendment or modification of, or 
supplement to, any of the related documents or consent to, or permit or suffer to occur any action, 
course of dealing, or omission which results in, or is equivalent to, an amendment, 
supplementation, termination, or modification of any of the related documents, without the prior 
written consent of the Bondholders and any such amendment, supplementation, termination, or 
modification made or entered into in violation of this subsection will be deemed a nullity and of 
no force and effect. 
 
 13.02. The Issuer shall not directly or indirectly liquidate, wind up, terminate, reorganize, 
dissolve, merge, or consolidate (or suffer any liquidation, winding up, termination, reorganization, 
or dissolution), except as consented to in writing by the Bondholder in its sole discretion. 
 
 13.03. The Issuer will not adopt, permit, or consent to any change in accounting practices 
other than as required by GAAP and will not adopt, permit, or consent to any change in its Fiscal 
Year or take (or permit to be taken) any action that results in (a) a change to its entity classification 
for Federal or State income tax purposes, or (b) a change to the method of accounting applicable 
to the Definitive Warrants, or the times of commencement or termination of Fiscal Years or other 
accounting periods relating to Definitive Warrants without first disclosing in writing such change 
to the Bondholders. 
 
 13.04. To the extent that ERISA may become applicable to the Issuer, the Issuer will not 
violate ERISA in any way that could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect. 
 
 13.05. The Issuer shall not take any  action or omit to take any action that, if taken or 
omitted, would adversely affect the excludability of interest on the Bond from the gross income of 
the holders thereof for purposes of Federal income taxation under the Code and State income 
taxation. 
 
 Section 14. Arbitrage. 
 
 14.01. The Issuer covenants and agrees with the holders from time to time of the Bonds 
that it will not take or permit to be taken by any of its officers, employees, or agents, any action 
which would cause the interest on the Bonds to become subject to taxation under the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”), and Regulations, Amended Regulations, and Proposed 
Regulations issued thereunder, as now existing or as hereinafter amended or proposed and in effect 
at the time of such action. 



 

8 

 
 Section 15. Parity Warrants and Bonds. 
 
 15.01. The Issuer hereby reserves the right to issue additional improvement bonds and 
refunding improvement bonds, payable on a parity with the Bonds issued hereunder and the 
warrants to be exchanged for the Bonds issued hereunder, to the extent required to complete the 
Improvements, provided that the total amount of special assessments and taxes appropriated from 
payment of the cost of the Improvements shall not be less than the total amount of warrants issued 
with respect thereto. 
 
 Section 16. Discharge. 
 
 16.01. When all of the Bonds have been discharged as provided in this paragraph, all 
pledges, covenants, and other rights granted by this Resolution shall cease as to the holders of such 
Bonds.  Any and all Bonds due on any date may be discharged by depositing with the Paying 
Agent, on or before the date, a sum sufficient for the payment thereof, with interest, in full; and if 
any Bond should not be paid when due, the same may nevertheless be discharged by depositing 
with the Paying Agent a sum sufficient for the payment thereof in full with interest accrued from 
the due date to the date of such deposit.  The Issuer may discharge any or all of the Bonds at any 
time, when authorized by law, by irrevocably depositing in escrow with a suitable banking 
institution, for the purpose of paying all principal and interest due on such Bonds at maturity, a 
sum of cash sufficient for this purpose, or securities in such aggregate face amount bearing interest 
at such rates and maturing or callable at the option of the holder on such dates as shall be required, 
with any additional cash deposited, to provide funds sufficient for this purpose. The securities to 
be so deposited shall be limited to cash or direct obligations of (including obligations issued or 
held in book entry form on the books of the Department of the Treasury) the United States or 
obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United 
States of America. 
 
 Section 17. Designation of Bond Registrar and Paying Agent. 
 
 17.01. The Issuer hereby designates Starion Bond Services as Paying Agent and Bond 
Registrar for the Bonds. 
 
 Section 18. Certificate of Proceedings. 
 
 18.01. The officers of the Issuer are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and furnish 
to said purchaser, and to the attorneys approving the legality of said Bonds, certified copies of such 
proceedings, ordinances, resolutions and records, and all such certificates and affidavits and other 
instruments as may be required to evidence the legality and marketability of said Bonds, and all 
certified copies, certificates, affidavits and other instruments so furnished, including any 
heretofore furnished, shall constitute representations of the Issuer as to the correctness of all facts 
stated or recited therein. 
 



 

9 

 Section 19. Book Entry System. 
 
 19.01. The Bonds shall be initially issued and, so long as they remain in book-entry form 
only (the “Book-Entry-Only Period”), shall at all times be in the form of a separate single fully 
registered Bond for each maturity of the Bonds.  The Depository Trust Company, a limited purpose 
trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York or any of its successors or 
successors to its functions hereunder (“DTC”) will act as securities depository for the Bonds. 
 
 19.02. Upon initial issuance, ownership of the Bonds shall be registered in a bond register 
maintained by the Bond Registrar in the name of CEDE & CO., as the nominee (it or any nominee 
of the existing or successor DTC, the “Nominee”). 
 
 19.03. With respect to the Bonds, neither the Issuer nor the Bond Registrar shall have any 
responsibility or obligation to any broker, dealer, bank, or any other financial institution for which 
DTC holds Bonds as securities depository (the “Participant”) or the person for which a Participant 
holds an interest in the Bonds shown on the books and records of the Participant (the “Beneficial 
Owner”). Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, neither the Issuer, nor the Bond 
Registrar, shall have any such responsibility or obligation with respect to (a) the accuracy of the 
records of DTC, the Nominee or any Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the 
Bonds, or (b) the delivery to any Participant, any Owner or any other person, other than DTC, of 
any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or (c) the payment to 
any Participant, any Beneficial Owner or any other person, other than DTC, of any amount with 
respect to the principal of or premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, or (d) the consent given or 
other action taken by DTC as the Registered Holder of any Bonds (the “Holder”).  For purposes 
of securing the vote or consent of any Holder under this Resolution, the Issuer may, however, rely 
upon an omnibus proxy under which DTC assigns its consenting or voting rights to certain 
Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date identified in a listing 
attached to the omnibus proxy. 
 
 19.04. The Issuer and the Bond Registrar may treat as and deem DTC to be the absolute 
owner of the Bonds for the purpose of payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest 
on the Bonds, for the purpose of giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to the 
Bonds, for the purpose of obtaining any consent or other action to be taken by Holders for the 
purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Bonds, and for all purpose whatsoever.  The 
Bond Registrar, as paying agent hereunder, shall pay all principal of and premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds only to or upon the Holder or the Holders of the Bonds as shown on the bond 
register, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the 
Issuer’s obligations with respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds 
to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 
 
 19.05. Upon delivery by DTC to the Bond Registrar of written notice to the effect that 
DTC has determined to substitute a new Nominee in place of the existing Nominee, and subject to 
the transfer provisions in Section 22 (with respect to registration, transfer, exchange) hereof, 
references to the Nominee hereunder shall refer to such new Nominee. 
 
 19.06. So long as any Bond is registered in the name of a Nominee, all payments with 
respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bond and all notices with 



 

10 

respect to such Bond shall be made and given, respectively, by the Bond Registrar or Issuer, as the 
case may be, to DTC as provided in the Letter of Representations, to DTC required by DTC as a 
condition to its acting as book-entry DTC for the Bonds (said Letter of Representations, together 
with any replacement thereof or amendment or substitute thereto, including any standard 
procedures or policies referenced therein or applicable thereto respecting the procedures and other 
matters relating to DTC’s role as book-entry depository for the Bonds, collectively hereinafter 
referred to as the “Letter of Representations”). 
 
 19.07. All transfers of beneficial ownership interests in each Bond issued in book-entry 
form shall be limited in principal amount to authorized denominations and shall be effected by 
procedures by DTC with the Participants for recording and transferring the ownership of beneficial 
interests in such Bonds. 
 
 19.08. In connection with any notice or other communication to be provided to the Holders 
pursuant to this Resolution by the Issuer or Bond Registrar with respect to any consent or other 
action to be taken by Holders, DTC shall consider the date of receipt of notice requesting such 
consent or other action as the record date for such consent or other action; provided, that the Issuer 
or the Bond Registrar may establish a special record date for such consent or other action.  The 
Issuer or the Bond Registrar shall, to the extent possible, give DTC notice of such special record 
date not less than fifteen (15) calendar days in advance of such special record date to the extent 
possible. 
 
 19.09. Any successor Bond Registrar in its written acceptance of its duties under this 
Resolution and any paying agency registrar agreement shall agree to take any actions necessary 
from time to time to comply with the requirements of the Letter of Representations. 
 
 19.10. In the case of a partial prepayment of a Bond, the Holder may, in lieu of 
surrendering the Bonds for a Bond of a lesser denomination as provided in Section 22 hereof, make 
a notation of the reduction in principal amount on the panel provided on the Bond stating the 
amount so redeemed. 
 
 Section 20. Termination of Book-Entry Only System. 
 
 20.01. DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bonds 
at any time by giving written notice to the Issuer and discharging its responsibilities with respect 
thereto under applicable law.  The Issuer may terminate the services of DTC with respect to the 
Bond if it determines that DTC is no longer able to carry out its functions as securities depository 
or the continuation of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC is not in the best interests 
of the Issuer or the Beneficial Owners. 
 
 20.02. Upon termination of the services of DTC as provided in the preceding paragraph, 
and if no substitute securities depository willing to undertake the functions of DTC hereunder can 
be found which, in the opinion of the Issuer, is willing and able to assume such functions upon 
reasonable or customary terms, or if the Issuer determines that it is in the best interests of the Issuer 
or the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds that the Beneficial Owners be able to obtain certificates for 
the Bonds, the Bonds shall no longer be registered as being registered in the Bond Register in the 
name of the Nominee, but may be registered in whatever name or names the Holder of the Bonds 



 

11 

shall designate at that time, in accordance with Section 22 hereof.  To the extent that the Beneficial 
Owners are designated as the transferee by the Holders, in accordance with Section 22 (with 
respect to registration, transfer, or exchange) hereof, the Bonds will be delivered to the Beneficial 
Owners. 
 
 20.03. Nothing in this section shall limit or restrict the provisions of Section 22 (with 
respect to registration, transfer, or exchange) hereof. 
 
 Section 21. Letter of Representations. 
 
 21.01. The provisions in the Letter of Representations are incorporated herein by reference 
and made a part of the Resolution, and if and to the extent any such provisions are inconsistent 
with the other provisions of this Resolution, the provisions in the Letter of Representations shall 
control. 
 
 Section 22. Transfer. 
 
 22.01. Except as provided above, the Bonds are transferable upon the books of the Issuer 
at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, Bismarck, North Dakota, by the registered owner 
thereof in person or by its attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender thereof together with 
a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered 
owner or its attorney; and may also be surrendered in exchange for Bonds of other authorized 
denominations.  Upon such transfer or exchange the Issuer will cause a new Bond or Bonds to be 
issued in the name of the transferee or registered owner, of the same aggregate principal amount, 
bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date, subject to reimbursement for any 
tax, fee, or governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange.  No 
transfer of Bonds shall be required to be made during the fifteen (15) days next preceding an 
interest payment date, nor during the forty-five (45) days next preceding the date fixed for 
redemption of such Bonds. 
 
 22.02. The Issuer and the Bond Registrar may deem and treat the person in whose name 
any Bond is registered as the absolute owner thereof, whether the Bond is overdue or not, for the 
purpose of receiving payment and for all other purposes, and neither the Issuer nor the Bond 
Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. 
 
 Section 23. Repealer. 
 
 23.01. All prior resolutions and other acts or proceedings of this Governing Body which 
are in any way inconsistent with the terms of this Resolution are hereby amended to the extent 
necessary to give full force and effect to this Resolution. 
 
 23.02. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to modify, amend, violate, repudiate, or 
repeal any provision or covenant contained in any Bond, or any resolution pursuant to which any 
Bond has been issued and is outstanding, to the extent that a modification, amendment, violation, 
repudiation, or repealer would impair the obligation or contract owed to any holders of any Bonds 
or would otherwise be invalid or ineffective. 
 



 

12 

 Section 24. Bond Insurance. 
 
 24.01. Reserved for future use. 
 
 Section 25. Bonds Not Subject to Acceleration. 
 
 25.01. The Bonds are not subject to acceleration in the event of default. 
 
 Section 26. Amendment of Resolution. 
 
 26.01. This Resolution may be amended without the consent of any Bondholders for one 
or more of the following purposes: 
 

(a) To add to the covenants and agreements of the Issuer in this Resolution and any 
other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed by the Issuer, or to 
surrender any right or power herein reserved to or conferred upon the Issuer. 
 

(b) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect contained in this Resolution, that cure does 
not, in the judgment of the Issuer, adversely affects the interests of the Bondholders. 

 
26.02. This Resolution may be amended for any other purpose only upon the consent of 

not less than fifty percent (50%) of an aggregate principal amount of the Bonds outstanding, 
provided, however, that no amendment shall be valid which: 

 
(a) Extends the maturity of any Bond, reduces the rate of interest upon any Bond, 

extends the time of payment of interest on the Bond, reduces the amount of 
principal payable on any Bond, or reduces any premium payable on any Bond, 
without the consent of the affected Bondholder; or 
 

(b) Reduces the percent of Bondholders required to approve the mandatory resolutions. 
 

Section 27. No Credit Enhancement. 
 
27.01. There is no credit enhancement facility securing the Bonds, nor is there any 

provision for a credit enhancement facility to be provided to secure the Bonds. 
 
Section 28. Headings. 
 
28.01. Headings in this Resolution are included for convenience of reference only and are 

not a part hereof, and shall not limit or define the meaning of any provision hereof. 
 
Section 29. North Dakota Law Applies. 
 
29.01. The Resolution shall be controlled by the laws of the State of North Dakota, and as 

a result, any claim, demand, or cause of action arising under the terms of this Resolution shall be 
brought in an appropriate venue in the State of North Dakota. 

 



 

13 

Section 30. Not Qualified Tax Exempt Under Section 265. 
 
30.01. The Issuer hereby acknowledges that the Bond are not designated as a qualified 

tax-exempt obligation within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. 
 
Section 31. Official Statement. 
 
31.01. The Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Bonds, substantially in the form 

presented at this meeting, is hereby approved.  The officers of the Issuer are hereby authorized and 
directed to execute such certificates as may be appropriate concerning the accuracy, completeness, 
and sufficiency of the Official Statement. 

 
Section 32. Continuing Disclosure. 
 
32.01. The City Auditor is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf of the Issuer, the 

Continuing Disclosure Certificate attached as Attachment C to this Resolution. 
 
Section 33. Electronic Signatures.  
 
33.01.  The parties agree that the electronic signature of a party to this Resolution shall be 

as valid as an original signature of such party and shall be effective to bind such party to this 
Resolution. For purposes hereof: (i) “electronic signature” means a manually signed original 
signature that is then transmitted by electronic means; (ii) “transmitted by electronic means” means 
sent in the form of a facsimile or sent via the internet as a portable document format (“pdf”), or 
other replicating image attached to an electronic mail or internet message; or (iii) a digital signature 
of an authorized representative of any party provided by AdobeSign or DocuSign (or such other 
digital signature provider as specified by such party).  
 

(Signatures appear on the following page) 



 

 
 
       ____________________________________ 

Kory Peterson, Mayor 
 
Attest:   
   
 
______________________________ 
Brenton Holper, City Auditor 
 
                                 
 The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by 

Member ___________, and upon roll call vote, the following voted in favor thereof:  ___________ 

___________________________________.  The following were absent and not voting: _______, 

and the following voted against the same: _________, whereupon the resolution was declared duly 

passed and adopted. 



 

2 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

 
CITY OF HORACE 

 
REFUNDING IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2023A 

  
  
  
Registered           Registered   
  Number              Dollars      
 
  
  
       DATE OF ORIGINAL  
INTEREST RATE  MATURITY             ISSUE                    CUSIP 
 
         ___________, 2023 
  
REGISTERED OWNER:   
  
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:                                               DOLLARS  
  
 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the City of Horace, North Dakota, (the 
“Issuer”) acknowledges itself to be specially indebted and for value received promises to pay to 
the registered owner specified above or registered assigns, the principal amount specified above, 
but only from its Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series 2023A, Bond Fund (the “Bond Fund”) 
on the maturity date specified above, with interest thereon from the date hereof at the annual rate 
specified above, payable on May 1 and November 1 in each year, commencing November 1, 2023, 
to the holder of record on the close of the 15th day (whether or not a business day) of the 
immediately preceding month, all subject to the provisions referred to herein with respect to the 
redemption of the principal of this Bond before maturity.  The interest hereon and, upon 
presentation and surrender hereof, the principal hereof are payable in lawful money of the United 
States of America by check or draft by Starion Bond Services as Paying Agent, or its successor.  
Interest on the Bonds shall be determined on the basis of a 360 day year.  
 
 This Bond is one of an issue in the aggregate principal amount of $__________ all of like 
date and tenor except as to serial number, maturity date, interest rate and redemption privilege, 
issued, pursuant to the Resolution adopted by the governing body of the Issuer for the purpose of 
refunding its Temporary Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series 2021A and Temporary Refunding 
Improvement Bonds, Series 2021B (together the “Temporary Bonds”), and temporary special 
improvement warrants associated therewith, and refunding a like principal amount of valid 
outstanding definitive special improvement warrants drawn on the funds of improvement districts 
heretofore duly created by the Issuer for the financing of the cost of local improvements in 
anticipation of the levy and collection of special assessments with respect to the improvements, all 
pursuant to and in full conformity with the Constitution and laws of the State of North Dakota. 
 



 

3 

 Bonds of this issue maturing in the year 20__ and thereafter are each subject to redemption 
and prepayment at the option of the Issuer in inverse order of maturity and by lot within any 
maturity on __________ 1, 20___, and on any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal 
amount plus accrued interest.  Not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date specified for 
redemption and prepayment of any of the Bonds the Issuer will cause notice of the call thereof to 
be sent by mail to the Bond Registrar, Paying Agent and registered owner of the Bond to be 
redeemed in whole or in part at the address shown on the registration books of the Registrar. 
 

Bonds maturing in the year 20__ shall be known as Term Bonds.  The Term Bonds are 
subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in part by lot, or other method of random selection, 
at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest 
to the Redemption Date on May 1 of the following years and in the following principal amounts: 
 
  Redemption   
     Date     Principal 
    May 1         Amount  
 
    20__     $_________ 
    20__       _________ 
    20__*      _________ 
      *Final Maturity 
 
 In the event this Bond is called for prior redemption, not less than thirty (30) days prior to 
the date specified for redemption and prepayment of any of the Bonds, the Issuer will cause notice 
of the call thereof to be sent by mail to the Bond Registrar, Paying Agent and registered owner of 
the bond to be redeemed in whole or in part at the address shown on the registration books of the 
Registrar.  The Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Bond Registrar in the manner 
prescribed in the Bond Resolution. 
  
 This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
security or benefit under the Resolution until the Certificate of Authentication hereon shall have 
been executed by the Bond Registrar by manual signature of one of its authorized representatives.  
  
 As provided in the Resolution and subject to certain limitations set forth therein, this Bond 
is transferable upon the books of the Issuer at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, by the 
registered owner hereof in person or by its attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender 
hereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly 
executed by the registered owner or attorney; and may also be surrendered in exchange for Bonds 
of other authorized denominations.  Upon such transfer or exchange the Issuer will cause a new 
Bond or Bonds to be issued in the name of the transferee or registered owner, of the same aggregate 
principal amount, bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date, subject to 
reimbursement for any tax, fee or governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such 
transfer or exchange.  The Issuer and the Bond Registrar may deem and treat the person in whose 
name this Bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof, whether this Bond is overdue or not, 
for the purpose of receiving payment and for all other purposes, and neither the Issuer nor the Bond 
Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
  
 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED, COVENANTED AND AGREED that all acts, 
conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the State of North Dakota to be 



 

4 

done, to exist, to happen and to be performed precedent to and in the valid issuance of this Bond 
have been done, do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due form, time 
and manner as so required; that the Issuer has duly created the Bond Fund as a separate and distinct 
fund and has appropriated thereto the improvement warrants refunded by the Bonds of this series, 
on which improvement warrant payments are required by law to be made as though none of such 
warrants had been refunded, and will use due diligence to collect said improvement warrants and 
the special assessments and any taxes appropriated for their payment; that at closing, the Issuer 
shall set aside Bond proceeds and other funds of the Issuer, and any funds remaining in the bond 
funds for the Temporary Bonds, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to pay the principal 
and interest, if any, on all of the Temporary Bonds on ___________, 2023, or, alternatively, the 
Issuer will invest such funds in a manner so that the original funds, together with investment 
earnings, will be sufficient to pay the principal and accrued interest, if any, on all of the Temporary 
Bonds on _____________, 2023; the Issuer has reserved the right and privilege of issuing 
additional improvement warrants on the funds of said improvement districts, if and to the extent 
necessary to complete payment of the cost of the Improvements, and the right and privilege of 
refunding such warrants by the issuance of additional series of Refunding Improvement Bonds, 
payable on a parity with the Bonds of this series from the Bond Fund, provided that the total 
amount of special assessments and taxes appropriated for payment of the cost of the improvements 
shall be not less than the total amount of warrants issued with respect thereto; that the governing 
body is required by law to levy a tax upon all the taxable property in the corporate limits of the 
Issuer, without limitation as to rate or amount, to meet any deficiency in any of said improvement 
district funds for the payment of all warrants drawn thereon, with interest; and that all collections 
of special assessments and taxes appropriated for the payment of said improvement warrants are 
required by law to be credited to the Bond Fund and applied in payment of the principal of and 
interest on the Bonds of this series and any other series issued pursuant to the authority 
hereinbefore reserved; all as more fully stated in the Resolution; and that the issuance of this Bond 
has not caused the indebtedness of the Issuer to exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation 
of indebtedness.  
  
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the City of Horace, North Dakota, by its governing body, has 
caused this Bond to be executed in its behalf by the manual signature of the Mayor and City 
Auditor, and has caused the certificate appearing on the following page to be executed by the 
manual signatures of said officers.  
 
 Dated: 
 
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION  CITY OF HORACE 
 
This is one of the Bonds 
delivered pursuant to the 
Resolution mentioned within.    ____________________________________ 
       Mayor 
STARION BOND SERVICES 
333 North Fourth Street 
Bismarck, ND 58501 
 
 
BY: __________________________   ____________________________________ 
    Authorized Representative         City Auditor  



 

5 

CERTIFICATE AS TO LEGAL OPINION 
  
 We certify that attached is the legal opinion rendered by Bond Counsel on the issue of Bonds 
which includes the within Bond, dated as of the date of delivery of and payment for the Bonds.  
  
 ________________________   __________________________ 
 City Auditor     Mayor 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 The following abbreviations when used in the inscription on the face of this Bond, shall be 
construed as though they were written in full according to applicable laws or regulations:  
 
TEN COM - as tenants in common  
 
TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties  
 
JT TEN  - as joint tenants with right of survivorship  
  and not as tenants in common  
  
UTMA-ACT                     Custodian____________    
             (Cust)   (Minor)  
 
 under Uniform Transfer to Minors Act_________________                          
              (State) 

Additional abbreviations may also be used. 
 

 
ASSIGNMENT 

  
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
___________ the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and 
appoints _____________________________________ attorney to transfer the within Bond on the 
books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.  
  
DATED:                                                  _____________________________________  
 
Please insert social security or other       NOTICE:  The signature to this Assignment 
identifying number of Assignee:          must correspond to the name as it appears  
of Assignee:                         upon the face of the within Bond in every 
       particular, without alteration, enlargement 
                                                               or any change whatsoever 
Signature Guaranteed:  NOTICE:      
Signature(s) must be guaranteed      
by a member of the Medallion 
Signature Program. 



 

1 

 ATTACHMENT B 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 
 

CITY OF HORACE 
 

IMPROVEMENT WARRANT 
  
  
Registered   
  Number   
 
         DATE OF ORIGINAL 
INTEREST RATE        ISSUE       
 
 
 
REGISTERED OWNER: 
 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:        DOLLARS 
 
 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the City of Horace, North Dakota (the 
“Issuer”) acknowledges itself to be specially indebted and for value received promises to pay to 
the registered owner specified above or registered assigns, the principal amount of $__________ 
on May 1 in each of the years _____ through _____, but only from its ______________________ 
______________________ Fund, with interest thereon from the date hereof at the annual rate 
specified above, such interest payable on May 1 and November 1 in each year, commencing 
November  1, 2023, to the holder of record on the close of the 15th day (whether or not a business 
day) of the immediately preceding month.  The interest and principal are payable in lawful money 
of the United States of America by check or draft by the City Auditor. 
 
 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED, COVENANTED AND AGREED that all acts, 
conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the State of North Dakota to be 
done, to exist, to happen and to be performed preliminary to and in the valid issuance of this 
warrant have been done, do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due 
form, time and manner as so required; that this warrant is duly issued to pay costs incurred and to 
be incurred in the making of a necessary improvement of special benefit to the above-named 
Improvement District, in anticipation of the collection of special assessments to be duly levied 
upon properties within said district, and of taxes to the extent determined by the governing body, 
which are irrevocably appropriated to the fund of the district in amounts sufficient to pay when 
due the principal of and interest on all warrants drawn thereon; that if the fund should at any time 
be insufficient to pay principal or interest due, the Issuer is also required by law to levy a tax upon 
all of the taxable property within its corporate limits for the payment of such deficiency, without 
limitation of rate or amount; and that the issuance of this warrant did not cause the special or 
general indebtedness of the Issuer to exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation.  
  



 

2 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the City of Horace, North Dakota, by its governing body has 
caused this warrant to be executed in its behalf by the signature of the Mayor and countersigned 
by the City Auditor. 
  
                                     
 
       ____________________________________ 
                                       Mayor 
 
Countersigned: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Auditor 
 



 

1 

ATTACHMENT C 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
 
This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate”) is executed and delivered by 
the City of Horace, North Dakota (the “Issuer”), in connection with the Issuer’s $__________ 
Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series 2023A (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are being issued 
pursuant to the Authorizing Resolution adopted by the governing body of the Issuer on March 6, 
2023 (the “Resolution”) and delivered to Colliers Securities LLC (the “Purchaser”) on the date 
hereof.  The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate.  This Disclosure Certificate is being executed 
and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds in order to assist the 
Participating Underwriters within the meaning of SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) (the “Rule”) in 
complying with the Rule.  This Disclosure Certificate constitutes the written undertaking required 
by the Rule. 
 
Section 2.  Definitions.  In addition to the defined terms set forth in the Resolution, which apply 
to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, 
the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 
 
“Annual Report” means any annual report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as described in 
Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 
“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system operated by the MSRB as the 
primary portal for complying with the continuing disclosure requirements of the Rule. 
 
“Financial Obligations” means a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in 
connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (iii) a guarantee of (i) or (ii).  The term Financial Obligation shall not include 
municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB 
consistent with the Rule. 
 
“Financial Statements” means audited or, if unavailable, unaudited general purpose financial 
statements of the Issuer prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, as 
in effect from time to time or as required to be modified as a matter of law.  If unaudited financial 
statements are provided, audited financial statements will be provided when and if available. 
 
“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Issuer. 
 
“Final Official Statement” means the deemed final official statement dated ____________, 2023, 
delivered in connection with the Bonds, which is available from the MSRB. 
 
“Issuer” means City of Horace, North Dakota, which is the obligated person with respect to the 
Bonds. 
 
“Listed Event” means any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate. 
 



 

2 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board located at 1300 I Street NW, Suite 
1000, Washington, D.C. 
 
“Owner” means the person in whose name the Bond is registered or a beneficial owner of such a 
Bond. 
 
“Participating Underwriter” means any of the original underwriter(s) of the Bonds (including the 
Purchaser) required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds. 
 
“Repository” means EMMA. 
 
“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the SEC under the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time, and including written interpretations 
thereof by the SEC. 
 
“SEC” means Securities and Exchange Commission. 
  
Section 3.  Provision of Annual Financial Information and Financial Statements.   
 

(a) The Issuer shall, not later than twelve (12) months after the end of the Fiscal Year 
(currently December 31), commencing with the fiscal year ending December 31, 
2023 (which is due no later than December 31, 2024), provide the Repository with 
an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this 
Disclosure Certificate.  The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document 
or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other 
information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that 
the Financial Statements of the Issuer may be submitted separately from the balance 
of the Annual Report. 

 
(b) If the Issuer is unable or fails to provide to the Repository an Annual Report by the 

date required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall send a notice of that fact to the 
Repository, and the MSRB. 

 
(c) The Issuer shall determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual 

Report the name and address of the Repository. 
  
Section 4.  Content of Annual Reports.  The Issuer’s Annual Report shall contain or incorporate 
by reference the annual Financial Statements and the following sections in Appendix A of the Final 
Official Statement: 
 
   1. Largest Employers in the City. 
   2. Population Statistics. 
   3. Annual Unemployment Figures. 
   4. City Residential Building Permits. 
   5. City Commercial Building Permit Data. 
   6. Cass County Residential Building Permits. 
   7. Bonded Debt. 
   8. Overlapping General Obligation Bonded Indebtedness. 
   9. Valuations. 



 

3 

            10. Larger Taxpayers 
            11. Tax Levies and Collections. 
            12. City Mill Levy. 
 
In the event that the Issuer has not completed an audit of its annual financial statements by the date 
required in Section 3, subsection (a), of this Disclosure Certificate, then the Issuer will provide 
unaudited financial statements to the Repository.  The Issuer will provide to the Repository its 
audited Financial Statements as soon as practicable after they are completed.  The failure by the 
Issuer to provide an audited annual financial statement by the date required in Section 3, subsection 
(a) of this Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed a violation of the reporting obligations under 
this Disclosure Certificate.  The Issuer will provide its Annual Reports to the Repository in an 
electronic format as prescribed by the Repository. 
 
Section 5.  Reporting of Listed Events. 
 

(a) This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notice of the occurrence of any of the 
following events (“Listed Events”) with respect to the Bonds: 

 
  1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
  2. Non-payment related defaults, if material; 
  3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;  
  4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 
  5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue 
(IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with 
respect to the tax status of the security, or other material events affecting 
the tax status of the security; 

  7. Modification to rights of security holders, if material;  
  8. Bond Calls, if material, and tender offers; 
  9. Defeasances; 

          10. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 
securities, if material;  

          11. Rating changes. 
          12.  Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated 

person; 
          13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an 

obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the 
obligated person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry 
into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination 
of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant 
to its terms, if material;  

          14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of 
a trustee, if material. 

          15. Incurrence of a financial obligation of the obligated person, if material, or 
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other 
similar terms of a financial obligation of the obligated person, any of which 
affect security holders, if material; and 



 

4 

          16. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 
other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the obligated 
person, any of which reflect financial difficulties. 

 
(b) The Issuer shall file a notice of such occurrence with the Repository or with the 

MSRB within ten (10) business days of the occurrence of the Listed Event. 
   

(c) Unless otherwise required by law and subject to technical and economic feasibility, 
the Issuer shall employ such methods of information transmission as shall be 
requested or recommended by the designated recipients of the Issuer’s information; 
provided, however, that the Issuer will provide any required filings under this 
Section 5 to the Repository in an electronic format as prescribed by the Repository. 

 
Section 6.  Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Issuer’s obligations under this Disclosure 
Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all the 
Bonds. 
 
Section 7.  Agent.  The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a dissemination agent to 
assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge any 
such agent, with or without appointing a successor dissemination agent. 
 
Section 8.  Amendment: Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 
Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure 
Certificate may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is supported by an opinion of nationally 
recognized bond counsel to the effect that such amendment or waiver would not, in and of itself, 
cause the undertakings to violate the Rule.  This Disclosure Certificate, or any provision hereof, 
shall be null and void in the event that the Issuer delivers to the Repository an opinion of nationally 
recognized bond counsel to the effect that those portions of the Rule which require this Disclosure 
Certificate are invalid, have been repealed retroactively or otherwise do not apply to the Bonds.  
The provisions of this Disclosure Certificate may be amended without the consent of the Owners 
of the Bonds, but only upon the delivery by the Issuer to the Repository of the proposed amendment 
and an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that such amendment, and 
giving effect thereto, will not adversely affect the compliance of this Disclosure Certificate and by 
the Issuer with the Rule. 
 
Section 9.  Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to 
prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set 
forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other 
information in any Requested Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that 
which is required by this Disclosure Certificate.  If the Issuer chooses to include any information 
in any Requested Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is 
specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have no obligation under this 
Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Requested Report or 
notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 
 
Section 10.  Default.  In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of this 
Disclosure Certificate, any Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and 
appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the Issuer 
to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate.  A default under this Disclosure 



 

5 

Certificate shall not be deemed an event of default with respect to the Bonds and the sole remedy 
under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with this 
Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance. 
 
Section 11.  Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the Issuer, 
the Participating Underwriters and Owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no 
rights in any other person or entity. 
 
Section 12.  Counterparts.  This Disclosure Certificate may be executed in several counterparts, 
each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.   
 
Section 13.  Choice of Law.  This Disclosure Certificate shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of North Dakota, provided that to the extent this Disclosure 
Certificate addresses matters of federal securities laws, including the Rule, then this Disclosure 
Certificate shall be construed in accordance with such federal securities laws and official 
interpretations thereof. 
 
Section 14.  Severability.  If any portion of this Disclosure Certificate shall be held invalid or 
inoperative, then, so far as is reasonable and possible (i) the remainder of this Disclosure 
Certificate shall be considered valid and operative, and (ii) effect shall be given to the intent 
manifested by the portion held invalid or inoperative. 
 
Section 15.  Captions, Titles, and Headings.  The captions, titles, and headings used in this 
Disclosure Certificate are for convenience only and shall not be construed in interpreting this 
Disclosure Certificate.   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Disclosure Certificate in my official capacity 
effective _______________, 2023. 
 
       CITY OF HORACE 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Brenton Holper 
       City Auditor 
 
 



215 Park Drive E. | Horace, ND 58047 | (701) 492-2972 | CityofHorace.com

March 6, 2023

Mayor and City Council Members
215 Park Drive E
PO Box 99
Horace, ND 58047

RE: Rivers Edge 2nd Addition Plat Modification

Mayor and City Council Members,

On June 28, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the plat and rezone 
for Rivers Edge 2nd Addition. The City Council followed the Commission’s recommendation of approval by 
voting 4-0 to approve Rivers Edge 2nd Addition. Following the approval of the plat, the mylar for the final plat 
began preparation. The applicant is proposing the following adjustments to the final plat for Rivers Edge 2nd 
Addition:

 Private Drive Entrance Reconfiguration (River’s Edge Drive)
o Omit Public Street Bulb-Outs to minimize project costs and future maintenance challenges.
o Omit Right-of-Way widening at the corners.
o Adjust adjacent HOA lots to accommodate infrastructure and landscaping.
o Remove two buildable lots adjacent to river lots along the private drive.

 HOA lots
o Entrance Sign Lot Increased in size.
o Fence easement added.

 Easements
o Storm Sewer & Drainage Easements

 Added/modified easements, mainly backyard runs and sump pump lines.
 Reduce/minimize easements through park lots.

 Street names adjusted.
o Private drive street names
o 78th Street stud, change to 77th Street.

It should be noted that with these proposed modifications, the general layout of the subdivision remains 
unchanged. As a result of these modification, the number of buildable lots, and density of the project actually 
has decreased. However, due to the number of modification and technical corrections, staff brought these 
proposed modifications to the Planning and Zoning Commission at their regularly schedule meeting on February 
28, 2023. The Planning and Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the proposed plat 
modifications.

Regards,

Jace Hellman
City of Horace
Community Development Director



engineering, inc.
moore

PRELIMINARY
02/10/2023

N

W E

S

Scale in Feet

0 80

RIVER'S EDGE SECOND ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF HORACE, BEING PARTS OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, THE SOUTHWEST

QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER, AND THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER,
ALL IN SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 138 NORTH, RANGE 49 WEST, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

DATE

NO R T H D A K O T A

JaceHellman
Typewritten Text
Proposed Modified Plat

JaceHellman
Typewritten Text



engineering, inc.
moore

PRELIMINARY
02/10/2023

RIVER'S EDGE SECOND ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF HORACE, BEING PARTS OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, THE SOUTHWEST

QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER, AND THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER,
ALL IN SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 138 NORTH, RANGE 49 WEST, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

DATE

NO R T H D A K O T A

N

W E

S

Scale in Feet

0 80

JaceHellman
Typewritten Text
Proposed Modified Plat



engineering, inc.
moore

PRELIMINARY
02/10/2023

RIVER'S EDGE SECOND ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF HORACE, BEING PARTS OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, THE SOUTHWEST

QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER, AND THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER,
ALL IN SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 138 NORTH, RANGE 49 WEST, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

DATE

NO R T H D A K O T A

N

W E

S

Scale in Feet

0 80

JaceHellman
Typewritten Text
Proposed Modified Plat



DATE

NO R T H D A K O T A

PRELIMINARY
02/10/2023

RIVER'S EDGE SECOND ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF HORACE, BEING PARTS OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, THE SOUTHWEST

QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER, AND THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER,
ALL IN SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 138 NORTH, RANGE 49 WEST, CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

engineering, inc.
moore

JaceHellman
Typewritten Text
Proposed Modified Plat



JaceHellman
Typewritten Text
Previously approved plat



JaceHellman
Typewritten Text
Previously approved plat



JaceHellman
Typewritten Text
Previously approved plat



JaceHellman
Typewritten Text
Previously approved plat




	04a. - Claims Report
	04b. - February 2023 Pledges - City of Horace
	04c. - Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street ID 2022-11 (Cub Creek 2nd Addition) PE No. 2_TO CITY_
	05. - reviewed by legal - February 21 2023 Horace City Council Meeting Minutes
	07. - Sheriff's Report - February 2023
	08.- City of Horace Audit DRAFT 2.7.23
	09. - ResAuth -Param V3 (kjm clean)
	11. - Rivers Edge 2nd Plat Update CC Memo
	12. - Enterprise Funds Debt Forgiveness



